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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
of Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present the 2013/2014 annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
30th June 2014 (the “Year”).

The Group’s consolidated revenue for the Year increased
by approximately 159.4% over the same period last year to
approximately HK$205.2 million which was mainly due to the
income from the two new large scale films “Out of Inferno 3D”
([¥H £ X3D J) and “The White Storm”([$& 5 ]) released
during the Year under review.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$24.3 million
for the Year, representing an increase of 420.1% over the same
period last year. The significantly increase in net loss of the Group
was mainly due to the Group (i) incurred the fair value loss in
issuance of the unlisted warrants of approximately HK$81.2
million during the Year and (i) recorded an increase of segmental
loss of approximately HK$7.7 million from film exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights as compared to the same period
last year as a result of lower gross profit contribution from
licensing of newly released films due to the increase in advertising
expenses and production costs, while higher gross profit was
recorded for the same period last year from licensing of more
non-newly released films and television series which had been
fully amortised in the previous years, notwithstanding the Group
also (jii) recorded the gains arising from the disposal and changes
in the fair value of the investment securities of approximately
HK$35.9 million (which is subject to the applicable tax rate of
16.5%) and (iv) recorded the gains from the disposal of the entire
issued capital in Universe Property Investment Limited and Joy
Talent Investment Limited of approximately HK$43.7 million
during the Year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the Year (2013: same).

CHAIRMAN'’S STA'[EMENT
FEWRS
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEWRS

Following the improvement of economic environment in China, its
film exhibition industry flourished in 2013 and recorded the total
box office revenue of approximately RMB21.77 billion in 2013
as reported by the State Administration of Press, Publication,
Radio, Film and Television of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”). During the first half of 2014, the PRC total box office
revenue has grown continuously from approximately RMB10.99
billion for the six months ended 30th June 2013 to approximately
RMB13.74 billion for the six months ended 30th June 2014,
representing an increase of approximately 25.0% as compared to
the corresponding period of 2013.

We are optimistic about the prospects of the film exhibition
industry and the entertainment industry in China due to
the continuous economy growth and the rising demand for
entertainment in China. The Group will continue to grasp other
business opportunities in entertainment industry and penetrate
into other business sectors with enormous potentials to
broaden the income sources to generate greatest return for its
shareholders and reward their long-term support.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors
and our staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to
the Group in the past year. | would also like to thank all our
customers and shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

The Group’s consolidated revenue for the Year increased
by approximately 159.4% over the same period last year to
approximately HK$205.2 million which was mainly due to the
income from the two new large scale films “Out of Inferno 3D”
(T#k £ R3D 1) and “The White Storm”([#F &) released
during the Year under review.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$24.3 million
for the Year, representing an increase of 420.1% over the same
period last year. The significantly increase in net loss of the Group
was mainly due to the Group (i) incurred the fair value loss in
issuance of the unlisted warrants of approximately HK$81.2
million during the Year and (i) recorded an increase of segmental
loss of approximately HK$7.7 million from film exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights as compared to the same period
last year as a result of lower gross profit contribution from
licensing of newly released films due to the increase in advertising
expenses and production costs, while higher gross profit was
recorded for the same period last year from licensing of more
non-newly released films and television series which had been
fully amortised in the previous years, notwithstanding the Group
also (iii) recorded the gains arising from the disposal and changes
in the fair value of the investment securities of approximately
HK$35.9 million (which is subject to the applicable tax rate of
16.5%) and (iv) recorded the gains from the disposal of the entire
issued capital in Universe Property Investment Limited and Joy
Talent Investment Limited of approximately HK$43.7 million
during the Year.

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for 69.5% (2013: 51.7%) of the Group’s total revenue
during the Year under review due to higher licensing income
of newly released films generated from the overseas market
especially from PRC market. Revenue from the PRC market
increased by 311.3% to HK$121.9 million, accounting for 59.4%
of the Group’s consolidated revenue (2013: 37.5%).

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

XBREEDE

EREEXES

RAFE AEBZGARERAFREER
#9159.4%Z #78 #205,200,0007T  F B *
REEFE R D 2 ME KB REE & [k
HERID] R FS] Z2WA-

R BN F E 815 F BB 48 %24,300,000
TC B F R BB I1420.1% © ANE@F EIE K
BIEMDEEHRNAEB ()N AFERTIHEL
T AR e 78 B A N B 5 18 4078 #581,200,000
TRERBEERRBEERAE NGB L
HEREEREZEMNBERRD  Eomm &
R EEE R 2D BB X F RN
#9785 #7,700,0007T - MAF R BRI HE LI
FHLEYLNEREEBRRE (ENBEFE
BEEH MBESEEa2EN BEAEEN
RAFE (i RALEREZTLEREERS
NEEEH) 2 W #%835,900,0007T (Bi%
HAME16.5%HE) RVERBRELEET
MEREERATIRETEREBRATZHE
BEITIR AN 2 W 7 #9786 43,700,0007T ©

B ERME  REBFEA REBEINT
Gz BRMEAREBRINZE 2695 % (ZF—=
F:51.7%) RAREINTS (FRIZHET
BIREFELEZRIEZ WAL KRG F
BT 45 2 W a5 38 11311.3% 2 74 121,900,000
TC ARG AEWE 2 59.4% (ZT—=4F:
37.5%) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Video distribution

During the Year under review, the local video distribution business
accounted for approximately 3.8% (2013: approximately 8.1%) of
the Group’s consolidated revenue. Turnover from this business
segment posted an increment of approximately 22.5% to
approximately HK$7.9 million compared to the same period last
year as more number of new titles being released during the Year
under review.

Nevertheless, due to the adverse operating environment, the
performance of this business segment was the same as last year.
During the Year under review, the Group recorded a segmental
loss of approximately HK$4.1 million (2013: HK$4.0 million).

Film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$174.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately 180.6% as compared to approximately
HK$62.2 million in the same period last year. It accounted
for approximately 85.0% (2013: approximately 78.6%) of the
Group’s total turnover during the Year.

The significant increase in revenue from this business segment
was mainly due to the income from the two new large scale films
“Out of Inferno 3D” ([#kH A X3D ) and “The White Storm”
(483 ]) released during the Year under review. There was no
such new large scale film released in the same period last year.
However, the segmental loss from this segment was
approximately HK$12.6 million during the Year as compared to
segmental loss of approximately HK$5 million in the same period
last year. The increase in segmental loss was due to decrease in
gross profit contribution as a result of the increase in advertising
expenses and production costs of the newly released films during
the Year. Higher gross profit was recorded for the same period
last year from licensing of more non-newly released films and
television series which their cost had been fully amortised in the
previous years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Leasing of investment properties

During the Year under review, this business segment recorded
a growth of approximately 67.1% in revenue to approximately
HK$1.5 million from approximately HK$0.9 million due to the
increase of lease period of investment properties during the Year
as compared to the same period last year.

Securities Investment

The Group has started investing in the stock market that mainly
consists of Hong Kong listed companies since October 2013. As
at 30th June 2014, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$60.3 million. The
Group recorded the gains arising from the disposal and changes
in the fair value of the investment securities of approximately
HK$7.9 million and HK$28.0 million respectively during the Year.

Money lending business

With the aim of using the cash resources effectively, Universe
Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, obtained the money lending licence in Hong
Kong on 26th November 2013 and started its money lending
business in December 2013. During the Year under review, the
Group’s loan portfolio comprised of secured and unsecured
loans. Revenue from interest income was approximately HK$1.9
million (2013: Nil). The average interest rate charged by the
Group during the Year under review was approximately 8.5%-
24% per annum.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other income

Other income for the Year increased by approximately 26.2 times
to approximately HK$4.6 million as compared to approximately
HK$0.2 million in the same period last year. The increase was
mainly due to the receipt of sponsorship income and other
income for the Company’s films of approximately HK$4.0 million
(2013: HK$0.2 million) during the Year.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year increased by approximately 16.2%
to approximately HK$3.6 million as compared to approximately
HK$3.1 million in the same period last year. The increase in
selling expenses was mainly due to the increase in the number of
the newly released films during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year increased by approximately
27.3% to approximately HK$35.5 million as compared to
approximately HK$27.9 million in the same period last year.
The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to
the increase in the employee benefits expenses and overhead
expenses in developing the new business during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 10th
December 2013, the Universe Films (Holdings) Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “JT Vendor”),
entered into an agreement (the “JT Agreement”) with Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to which the JT Vendor
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase, the entire
issued share capital in Joy Talent Investment Limited, a then
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“JT”) for a
consideration of HK$6,277,000.

The principal assets of JT consist of an office unit at No. 1501,
15th Floor, Block 24, Jianwai SOHO, No. 39 Dongsanhuan
Zhonglu Road Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC with a gross
floor area of 3,029 square foot in a large scale residential/office/
commercial composite development, known as Jianwai SOHO in
Beijing, the PRC.

On the same date of 10th December 2013, Universe Films
(Holdings) Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Universe Laser & Video Co. Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (collectively the “UPI
Vendors”) entered into an agreement (the “UPI Agreement”) with
the Purchaser pursuant to which the UPI Vendors agreed to
sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase, the entire issued
share capital in the Universe Property Investment Limited, a then
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (‘UPI”) for a
consideration of HK$73,862,000.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The principal assets of UPI consist of the following properties:

(1) an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial
building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a
2-level basement (with a saleable area of approximately
18,983 square foot) (the “Wyler Centre Properties”);

(2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd Floor of a 28-storey
industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium
plus a 2-level basement (the “Wyler Centre Carpark”);

(8) an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial
building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a
2-level basement (with a saleable area of approximately
5,087 square foot);

(4) a detached house situated in a large-scale low-rise
residential development known as Fairview Park. The
property has a gross floor area of about 1,297 square foot;
and

(5) a unit on the 16th Floor of a 26-storey industrial building
including 2-storey car park podium known as Golden
Dragon Industrial Centre. The property has a saleable floor
area of about 1,000 square foot.

Prior to the UPI Agreement, the Group had been using the Wyler
Centre Properties and Wyler Centre Carpark for warehouse,
ancillary office and carparking uses. Since the completion of the
UPI Agreement which took place on 25th February 2014, the
Group has been continuing to use the Wyler Centre Properties
and Wyler Centre Carpark for the same purposes and has
through Universe Digital Entertainment Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement with UPI with a monthly rental of HK$244,000.

The JT Agreement and the UPI Agreement were both completed
on 25th February 2014. The total gains from the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of JT and UPI of approximately
HK$43.7 million were recorded during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DA

Income tax (expense)/credit

The Group recorded income tax expense of approximately
HK$5.9 million during the Year, which were mainly attributable to
the deferred income tax relating to the unrealised fair value gain
on investment securities of approximately HK$4.6 million during
the Year. For the same period last year, the Group recorded an
income tax credit of approximately HK$0.2 million as the Group
recorded a loss before tax of approximately HK$4.9 million.

NEW/POTENTIAL INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 30th October
2018 and 30th June 2014, the Group entered into a cooperative
framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with & M
LR BEMBIERLLEEEFR A A (“Guizhou Colorful”) (in English,
for identification purpose only, Guizhou Colorful Guizhou Town
Construction Management Co., Ltd.), a limited liability company
established in the PRC, on 30th October 2013, in relation to
the proposed cooperation in a development project (“Colorful
Guizhou Town Project”) of Colorful Guizhou Town (% % & M
), a commercial, leisure and tourism site to be constructed
in Guiyang City, the PRC. During the construction and operation
phase of Colorful Guizhou Town, the Group will provide design,
planning and management and personnel training services
to Guizhou Colorful, and will consider investment in and
construction of high-end theatres in Colorful Guizhou Town. If
the parties to the Framework Agreement shall not have entered
into a formal cooperative agreement regarding their proposed
cooperation by 31st December 2014, the Framework Agreement
shall lapse.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 17th June
2014, the Group entered into the cooperation framework
agreement (the “Cooperation Framework Agreement”) with 12 &
RHER (L)) BMR A A (in English, for identification purpose
only, Bestcar Services (Shanghai) Limited or Bestcar Services
Shanghai), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
and Mr. Li Jia (“Mr. Li") on 17th June 2014. Pursuant to the
Cooperation Framework Agreement, the Group, Bestcar Services
Shanghai and Mr. Li intended to cooperate in the following
manner:

1. Bestcar Services Shanghai shall assist the Group to form a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise (“WFOE”) with a registered
capital of RMB170 million in the PRC and assist the
WEFOE in obtaining the necessary approvals from relevant
authorities in relation to the provision of finance leasing
services;

2. Bestcar Services Shanghai shall provide marketing and
management resources to the WFOE and assist the WFOE
in developing and operating its automobile finance leasing
business in areas including but not limited to:

(@)  the referral of automobile finance leasing clients to the
WFOE subject to the WFOE having final authority in
approving the relevant finance leases;

(b)  the provision of risk management and finance leasing
approval resources and systems;

(c) the provision of assistance in relation to financial
settlement of finance leases;

(d) acting on behalf of the WFOE in handling payment
collection and asset preservation; and

(e) the provision of training services for employees of the
WFOE.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

3. The Group shall grant Bestcar Services International
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Li, the option to
purchase 20-30% interest of the WFOE or its direct holding
company in the manner as ascribed in the Cooperation
Framework Agreement. The option is capable of being
exercised within a period of three years after the WFOE has
obtained all necessary licences for operating its automobile
finance leasing business in the PRC.

The Cooperation Framework Agreement also sets out the
intended provisions regulating how Bestcar Services Shanghai
shall be remunerated for its services to be provided to the Group.

The Group, Bestcar Services Shanghai and Mr. Li will enter into
a formal cooperative agreement to set out definitive terms of
cooperation subject to the Group and Bestcar Services Shanghai
being satisfied of the due diligence results on the subject matters
of the Cooperation Framework Agreement.

If the above conditions are not satisfied prior to 31st December
2014, the Cooperation Framework Agreement will lapse.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 16th July
2014, the Group entered into a non-legally binding letter of intent
(the “LOI") with Jade Sparkle Holdings Limited ( #%% A R
A1) (“Jade Sparkle”) and Wong Chun Loong (& kK[ ) (“Mr.
Wong”) (Jade Sparkle and Mr. Wong are collectively referred to as
“Vendors”) in respect of the proposed acquisition of all or part of
the Vendors’ shareholding in Jade Dynasty Multi-Media Limited
(FEFZHEEARAT) (“Target Company” and together with
its subsidiaries, the “Target Group”). The Vendors collectively hold
78.64% of the issued share capital of the Target Company as at
16th July 2014. The number of shares in the Target Company
and the consideration therefor are subject to negotiation by
the parties. The Target Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Samoa and is principally engaged in (i) the
production and distribution of cartoon and animation; and (i)
research and development of various multi-media technologies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The other principal terms of the LOI include:

(1)

The Goup is entitled to conduct a due diligence exercise
(“Due Diligence”) on the businesses and operations of the
Target Group during the period from the date of the LOI
until 30th November 2014 (the “Relevant Period”). The
Vendors shall use their reasonable endeavours to provide
the relevant information in order to assist the Group to
complete the Due Diligence.

Upon the completion of the Due Diligence and subject
to the Group being satisfied with the result of the Due
Diligence exercise on the Target Group, a formal sale and
purchase agreement (a “Definitive Agreement”) shall be
entered into between the parties.

The Vendors agree with the Group that during the Relevant
Period, among other matters, the Vendors shall not,
initiate, discuss, negotiate, encourage or enter into any
agreements or arrangements with any third party (other
than contemplated in the LOI) relating to the proposed
acquisition or initiate, discuss, negotiate or take part in any
matters that may hinder the performance of the transaction
contemplated under the LOI (the “Exclusivity Obligation”).

The LOI does not constitute any legally-binding
commitment of either party in respect of the proposed
acquisition, except for the provisions governing the
Exclusivity Obligation, the confidentiality obligations and
other miscellaneous provisions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

The LOI shall be terminated upon the occurrence of the following
circumstances:

(1)  the entering into of a Definitive Agreement between the
Vendors and the Group; or

(2) each of the Vendors and the Group has agreed to such
termination by giving prior written notice to each other; or

(8)  the Group and the Vendors do not enter into the Definitive
Agreement during the period from the date of the LOI until
30th November 2014 (or such other date as may be agreed
between the parties).

The Framework Agreement, the Cooperation Framework
Agreement and the LOI only set out the preliminary cooperation
intentions and are subject to the entering into formal cooperative
agreements by the respective parties setting out definitive terms
of cooperation. Further announcement(s) in relation to the
Framework Agreement, the Cooperation Framework Agreement
and the LOI will be made by the Company as and when
appropriate in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

OUTLOOK

Following the improvement of economic environment in China, its
film exhibition industry flourished in 2013 and recorded the total
box office revenue of approximately RMB21.77 billion in 2013
as reported by the State Administration of Press, Publication,
Radio, Film and Television of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”). During the first half of 2014, the PRC total box office
revenue has grown continuously from approximately RMB10.99
billion for the six months ended 30th June 2013 to approximately
RMB13.74 billion for the six months ended 30th June 2014,
representing an increase of approximately 25.0% as compared to
the corresponding period of 2013.

The film exhibition industry in China continues to grow at a robust

pace and the Group will continue to explore new opportunities in
this sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Not only film exhibition market in the PRC continues to grow,
but the whole entertainment industry in China especially online
game market in the PRC also sees huge growth potential. With
the increasing penetration of smart mobile devices and advances
technologies, the Group expects that money spent on mobile
games by users of smart mobile devices will grow rapidly in the
future. During the Year, the Group has invested HK$55 million
in an investment portfolio of Hydra Capital SPC, an exempted
company incorporated with limited liability and registered as a
segregated portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman
Islands focused on making investments in internet related and
mobile-application-related industries, by way of subscription for
shares. As at 30th June 2014, this investment was classified as
available-for-sale investment and a decrease of fair value of this
investment of approximately HK$35,000 was recorded in the
Group’s other comprehensive income.

In addition, pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated
5th December 2013, the Group and China Mobile Games and
Cultural Investment Limited (formerly known as Computech
Holdings Limited) (‘CMGC”), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability and the issued shares of
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market operated by the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8081) entered into a joint venture
agreement (“JV Agreement”), in relation to the establishment of
a joint venture (the “JV Company”) on 5th December 2013. The
JV Company with an issued capital of HK$20,000 was set up in
July 2014 in Hong Kong and the shares of which are owned as
to 50% by CMGC and 50% by the Group. The JV Company is
principally engaged in the development and sale of computer and
mobile phone games.

The Group will continue to identify different investment
opportunities include but not limited to the aforesaid “NEW/
POTENTIAL INVESTMENTS” on pages 14 to 18 and in
entertainment, gaming, culture-related business and other
business sectors with enormous potentials to further diversify its
business and broaden the income sources to maximize the return
to its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

FINANCIAL RESOURCES/LIQUIDITY
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s financial position remained healthy. As at 30th June
2014, the Group had cash balances of HK$84.2 million (2013
HK$50.4 million).

As announced on 16th September 2013, the Company entered
into a conditional placing agreement (the “Warrant Placing
Agreement”) whereby the Company appointed a placing agent to
procure placees to subscribe for the warrants (the “Warrant(s)”),
on a best efforts basis, at an issue price of HK$0.0025 per
Warrant (the “lssue Price”). The Warrants would entitle the
holders thereof to subscribe in cash up to an aggregate amount
of HK$85.5 million for the new shares of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.25 per Warrant (the “Initial
Subscription Price”), subject to adjustments, for a period of 2
years commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants. Based
on the Initial Subscription Price of HK$0.25 per new shares to
be allotted and issued upon exercise of the subscription right
attaching to the Warrants, a maximum of 342,000,000 new
shares (the “Warrant Shares”) would be allotted and issued by
the Company. Assuming the maximum aggregate amount of
HK$85.5 million of the Warrants were placed with the placee(s),
the maximum net proceeds from the placing of the Warrant
would be approximately HK$0.6 million. The Initial Subscription
Price of HK$0.250 per Warrant Share represents (i) a premium
of about 16.28% over the closing price of HK$0.215 per Share
as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 16th September 2013, being the
date of the Warrant Placing Agreement, and (iij a premium of
about 11.51% over the average closing price of approximately
HK$0.2242 per Share as quoted on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the last five
trading days up to and including 13th September 2013, the
last trading day immediately preceding the date of the Warrant
Placing Agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The aggregate of the Issue Price of HK$0.0025 per Warrant
and the Initial Subscription Price of HK$0.250 per Warrant was
HK$0.2525. This represents (i) a premium of about 17.44%
over the closing price of HK$0.215 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 16th September 2013, being the date of the
Warrant Placing Agreement, and (i) a premium of about 12.62%
over the average closing price of approximately HK$0.2242 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five trading
days up to and including 13th September 2013, the last trading
day immediately preceding the date of the Warrant Placing
Agreement.

The net price of each Warrant Share to be issued upon
the exercise of the Warrants, after deducting the expenses
and based on the full exercise of the Warrants, would be
approximately HK$0.252.

The Directors consider that the placing of Warrants was an
appropriate means of raising additional working capital for the
Company because it would not have an immediate dilutive effect
on the shareholding of the existing Shareholders. In addition,
apart from the net proceeds that would be raised immediately
upon completion of the Placing, the Company would be provided
with additional funds upon the exercise of the subscription rights
to be attached to the Warrants.

The Company will receive an additional amount of
HK$85,500,000 upon exercise in full of the subscription rights
to be attached to the Warrants at the initial Subscription
Price (assuming that the maximum aggregate amount of
HK$85,500,000 of the Warrants have been issued by the
Company). The Company intends to use such proceeds for
general working capital and for development of new investment
opportunities. The proceeds from the Warrant Placing, to
the extent that the above intended uses have not yet been
implemented, may be used by the Group for treasury purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

The placing of the Warrants was completed and the Warrants
were placed to not less than six placees at the Issue Price
of HK$0.0025 per Warrant on 25th October 2013. The net
proceeds from the issue of the Warrants of HK$0.6 million has
been utilised as general working capital of the Company and the
subscription rights attached to the Warrants has not yet been
exercised by the holders of the Warrants as at 30th June 2014
and no proceeds have been received so far. The Group incurred
a fair value loss of approximately HK$81.2 million in issuance of
the Warrants by the Group during the Year and it did not have
any negative cashflow impact to the Group.

As announced on 23rd June 2014, the Company entered into
a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company appointed a placing agent to procure, on
a best effort basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for up
to 343,200,000 new ordinary shares of the Company (“Placing
Shares”) at a price of HK$0.1 per Placing Share. The Placing
Price of HK$0.1 per Placing Share represented:

(i) a discount of approximately 13.79% to the closing price of
HK$0.116 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
23rd June 2014, the date of the Placing Agreement; and

(i)  a discount of approximately 13.64% to the average
closing price of HK$0.1158 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading days of
the Shares immediately prior to the date of the Placing
Agreement.

Assuming the maximum number of the Placing Shares
were placed, the gross proceeds from the Placing would be
approximately HK$34.3 million and the net proceeds would be
approximately HK$33.0 million. On such basis, the net issue price
would be approximately HK$0.096 per Placing Share.

The Directors were of the view that the Placing would strengthen
the financial position of the Group and provide general working
capital to the Group to meet any future development and
obligations. The Placing also represented good opportunities
to broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital base of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Placing Agreement was completed on 9th July 2014
and an aggregated of 343,200,000 Placing Shares have
been successfully placed to not less than six placees. The
net proceeds from the issuance of the Placing Shares are
approximately HK$33.0 million and has been utilised for general
working capital.

As at 30th June 2014, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$394.8 million, which was similar to the total
assets of the Group of HK$396.5 million as at 30th June 2013.

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2014 is zero (2013:
zero), which was calculated on the basis of the Group’s long term
borrowings and on the total equity of the Company.

There was no finance cost arising from borrowings for the Year.

Finance cost of HK$1,090,000 for the year ended 30th June
2013 represents the difference between a loan of HK$8.8 million
advanced to a joint venture on 26th April 2013 and its present
value measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, which will be recognized as accretion income through
the passage of time over the contractual loan period.

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, management considers the Group’s exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates to be limited and thus no financial
instruments for hedging purposes are used by the Group.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2014, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (2013: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30th June 2014, the Group employed 48 staff (2013:
45). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staffs are
entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance scheme and
mandatory provident fund.
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BEENWE D

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Old Scheme”) in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 29th November 2011 (the “2011 AGM”), the
Company approved the refreshment of the scheme mandate
limit, which is 10% of the total number of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM, under the Old
Scheme. After the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit,
the total number of share options available for issue under the
Old Scheme as at the date of the 2011 AGM was 171,177,037,
which represented 10% of the total number of the issued shares
of the Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM.

There was no share option outstanding prior to 27th June 2012
under the Old Scheme. On 27th June 2012, the Company
granted 34,235,403 share options to certain Directors and
employees of the Group under the Old Scheme at the
subscription price of HK$0.067 per share option which were
vested immediately and exercisable for a three-year period
between 27th June 2012 and 26th June 2015 (both dates
inclusive). Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. 17,117,700
share options have been exercised for the Year and the total
number of share options outstanding under the Old Scheme
as at 30th June 2014 was 17,117,703. Certain Directors and
employees of the Group have been granted share options under
the Old Scheme, details of which are set out in the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” of the Report of the
Directors on page 51 of this annual report.

The Old Scheme expired on 26th November 2013. According to
the provisions of the Old Scheme, share options granted during
the term of the Old Scheme and remain unexercised immediately
prior to the end thereof shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of grant notwithstanding the expiry
of the Old Scheme.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

B ERE

RENR-_ZZT=F+—-A-tBEHETZER
BEAG LRBZ —REBRER ARAR
& bR R R BE I MR — IR BB AR AT 8l
(TE&tE) -

BERZT——F+—AZTNARTZRE
BERG([ZT—FRIRAFRE]) LB
By —IELTERER AR EHEE T ERE
BINZHAERELR WARRR-_ZT——F
BEEFASE A2 BBITRHABEZ10% °
REFTERELR 2% RZT——FRRE
BEREEABRBEEAHET 2 BRES
HR171,177,0371 - HER _ZE——FRFRA
FREEBARAZBEITRHAEZ210% °

R-ZT——FNA-t+EHAEHEETH
EERENRTE - R_T——F A=+t
B NABIRBET 28I B IRAES10.067
TL 2 FRBE B IR 134,235,40317 BN 57 8 K Al 1A
—E——F XAt tBE-_ZT—HFA
ZHAB(BEEEMKX) —FHEARTEZ
BRETAEEZETESEE - FHBK
R THEAENREAQR 2 —REAR-
17,117, 700 R ER AN FEDEITE - MR
—E-NMEXNA-THREEFENARITEZ
RS £17,117,70300 - REBE B RIEE:
ERETEEREERLBERE BEFEH
RAFRENBEETEMES [BRETE

— o

EffEER_F—=F1+—A=-t+BEH-
RIBEFEIFX REFSIHRAR L R EEZ
SHBIAER AT W RTT R B RS R A TR R
REGRTATE BEEFSE 2



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 2nd December 2013 (the “2013 AGM”), the
Company conditionally approved and adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Scheme”) in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The total number of share options available for
issue under the New Scheme as at the date of the 2013 AGM
was 171,604,979, which represented 10% of the total number
of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of the 2013
AGM. There was no share option outstanding prior to 30th June
2014 under the New Scheme.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 21st July 2014,
the Company granted 171,604,000 share options to certain
Directors and employees of the Group under the New Scheme
at the subscription price of HK$0.1738 per share option
which were vested immediately and exercisable for a two-
year period between 21st July 2014 and 20th July 2016 (both
dates inclusive). Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 21st July 2014 for details.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 52, is the founder and Chairman
of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate strategy,
business planning and development and overall management of
the Group. Mr Lam has 33 years of experience in the film industry
in Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
2002.

Mr HUNG Cho Sing, aged 73, is mainly responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry. Mr Hung was
the founder of Delon International Film Corporation and has
been its General Manager since June 2004. Mr Hung was the
Organizing Committee Chairman of the 11th and 12th Hong
Kong Film Awards from 1991 to 1993 and from 1993 to 1995,
Mr Hung was the Chairman of the Hong Kong Film Awards
Association Limited. Mr Hung is currently the Chairman of Hong
Kong Motion Picture Industry Association. In recognition of
his contribution to the Hong Kong film industry, Mr Hung was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) in
2005. From April 2007 to March 2013, Mr Hung was appointed
by the Government of HKSAR as a member of the Hong
Kong Film Development Council. Mr Hung is also a member of
HKSAR Election Committee and since January 2013, he has
been appointed by the Government of HKSAR as a non-official
member of the Working Group on Manufacturing Industries,
Innovative Technology, and Cultural and Creative Industries under
the Economic Development Commission. Mr. Hung was a non-
executive director of Capital VC Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from September
2011 to January 2014. Currently, Mr Hung is an independent
non-executive director of China Star Entertainment Limited,
Freeman Financial Corporation and Mascotte Holdings Limited,
the shares of all such companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in October 2013.
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EEREREEAEHN

Mr YEUNG Kim Piu, aged 53, is mainly responsible for
overseeing the operation of artiste management division. Mr
Yeung joined the Group in 1993 and has over 17 years of
experience in the film distribution industry in Hong Kong.

Mr LAM Kit Sun, aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and investments functions of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 2013, he has over 10 years’ experience in the field
of financial reporting, financial management and audit experience
in China and Hong Kong. He graduated from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration in Accounting. Mr Lam is a fellow and
practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), an associate of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a non-
practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Currently, Mr Lam is the non-executive director of
Kiu Hung Energy Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and the independent
non-executive director of DX.com Holdings Limited and M Dream
Inworld Limited, the shares of all such companies are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM”). Mr Lam is also the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Finsoft Corporation, the shares of which are listed on
the GEM. He joined the Group in August 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr LAM Wing Tai, aged 48, is currently the financial controller
of Astrum Capital Management Limited. He studied accounting
at the Australian National University and obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce degree in 1991. Mr Lam is a member of the CPA
Australia and a Certified Public Accountant of HKICPA. Mr Lam
is an independent non-executive director of Jun Yang Solar
Power Investments Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the company secretary
of Gamma Logistic Corporation, the shares of which are listed
on the GEM. He was also an executive director of Hong Kong
Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (formerly known
as ZMAY Holdings Limited), the shares of which are listed on
the GEM, from October 2009 to November 2012. He joined the
Group in October 2013.

Mr. LAM Chi Keung, aged 44, holds a bachelor’s degree of
science in accounting awarded by Brigham Young University-
Hawaii in 1996. Mr. Lam also obtained a master’'s degree of
science in e-commerce from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2002. Mr. Lam is a fellow of HKICPA, a holder of the
specialist designation in insolvency of the HKICPA, a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a certified fraud examiner of the Association of Certified Fraud
Examiners. Mr. Lam has around 15 years of experience in
accounting and insolvency field. He is currently the group
financial controller and the company secretary of Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director
of Convoy Financial Holdings Limited, each of the companies
whose shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in 2013.
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Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 37, holds a bachelor’s degree of
business administration in accounting awarded by the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999. Mr. Choi
is a fellow of ACCA and a member of HKICPA. Mr. Choi has
around 14 years of experience in accounting and company
secretarial field. Mr. Choi was an independent non-executive
director of Zhidao International (Holdings) Limited (Stock
Code: 1220) from January 2012 to September 2014. Between
September 2010 and April 2013, Mr. Choi was the financial
controller and company secretary of Taung Gold International
Limited (Stock Code: 621), each a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of G Neptune Berhad
(formerly known as GPRO Technologies Berhad) (a company
listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad).
He joined the Group in 2013.

Senior Management

Mr LAM Siu Keung, Alvin, aged 44, is the Chief Operation Officer
of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the daily operation
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, Mr Lam has
over eight years of experience in finance and internal control
consulting for both Hong Kong and US listed companies in
Arthur Andersen. He earned his Bachelor of Accountancy at the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of both
ACCA and HKICPA. He is the younger brother of Mr LAM Shiu
Ming, Daneil.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of a good
standard of corporate governance practices by emphasizing
transparency, accountability and responsibility to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The board of directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) has adopted the code provision as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Continuous
efforts are made to review and enhance the Group’s internal
controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has, throughout the year ended 30th June 2014
(the “Year”), complied with the code provisions contained in the
Codes except for the code provision A.2.1 of the Code for the
separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”) as described in the following.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code sets out that the roles of the
Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEO. Mr Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group’s strategies.
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THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group’s prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters) are
reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@  any matter determined by the Board to be material involving
any conflict of interest for a substantial Shareholder or a
Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and
(iv)  the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant

capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

financial controls, compliance and risk management:

(i) the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i)  the approval of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and published reports;

(i)  the establishment and review of the effectiveness of
the Company’s systems of internal control and risk
management process; and

(ivy the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time;

major appointments and removals:

(i) appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(il recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”); and

(iv)  the appointment or removal of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).
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()  delegation of authority:

(i) changes to the terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board;

(i)  changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i)  matters which exceed the authority delegated to the
Chairman and the senior management.

(@ the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of seven Directors, with
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set out
on pages 27 to 30 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications. Their mix of professional skills and experience
is beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters of the
Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.
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The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company will
also update the Directors of any material changes in the Listing
Rules and corporate governance practices from time to time.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating in
any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years pursuant to code provision A4.1
of the Code. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election
in accordance with the provision of the Listing Rules and the
bye-law(s) of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). At least one-third
of Directors shall retire from office every year at the Company’s
annual general meeting.

Mr Yeung Kim Piu, Mr Hung Cho Sing and Mr Lam Wing Tai will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at such
meeting.
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BOARD MEETINGS
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Each year, the Board normally held four regular board meetings
at approximately quarterly interval. 23 board meetings were
convened during the Year and the attendances of each Director

at these meetings are set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr Hung Cho Sing

(appointed on 16th October 2013)
Mr Yeung Kim Piu
Mr Lam Kit Sun

(appointed on 30th August 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Lam Wing Tai

(appointed on 16th October 2013)
Mr Lam Chi Keung

(appointed on 4th December 2013)
Mr Choi Wing Koon

(appointed on 4th December 2013)
Mr Ng Kwok Tung

(retired on 2nd December 2013)
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert

(resigned on 4th December 2013)
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace

(resigned on 4th December 2013)

Board meeting

23/23

15/16
22/23

21/21

15/16
12/13
12/13
10/10
11/11

10/11
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GENERAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with them
in annual general meetings or other special general meetings and
encourages their participation.

An annual general meeting and a special general meeting were
convened on 2nd December 2013 and 19th February 2014,
respectively during the Year and the attendances of each Director
at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual Special
General General
Meeting Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) i7al 11
Mr Hung Cho Sing
(appointed on 16th October 2013) 1/1 1/1
Mr Yeung Kim Piu i7al 11
Mr Lam Kit Sun
(appointed on 30th August 2013) 11 11
Independent non-executive
Directors
Mr Lam Wing Tai
(appointed on 16th October 2013) 1/1 1/1
Mr Lam Chi Keung
(appointed on 4th December 2013) —/- 11
Mr Choi Wing Koon
(appointed on 4th December 2013) —/— 1/1
Mr Ng Kwok Tung
(retired on 2nd December 2013) i7al —/-
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert
(resigned on 4th December 2013) 1/1 —/-
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace
(resigned on 4th December 2013) i7al —/-
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29th February 2012) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr Choi Wing Koon (as Chairman), Mr Lam Wing Tai,
Mr. Lam Chi Keung and an executive Director, namely, Mr Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.
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The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@  no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b)  remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d)  recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

5 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at these meetings are
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Wing Koon (Chairman,
appointed on 4th December 2013)
1/1
Mr Lam Wing Tai
(appointed on 16th October 2013) 1/2
Mr Lam Chi Keung
(appointed on 4th December 2013) 1/1
Mr Ng Kwok Tung
(retired on 2nd December 2013) 3/3
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert
(resigned on 4th December 2013) 3/4
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace
(resigned on 4th December 2013) 3/4
Executive Director
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 4/5
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Lam Chi Keung (as Chairman), Mr Lam Wing Tai and
Mr Choi Wing Koon and an executive Director, namely, Mr Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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4 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at these meetings are
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Lam Chi Keung (Chairman,
appointed on 4th December 2013)
/=
Mr Choi Wing Koon
(appointed on 4th December 2013) —/-
Mr Lam Wing Tai
(appointed on 16th October 2013) 1M1
Mr Ng Kwok Tung
(retired on 2nd December 2013) 3/3
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert
(resigned on 4th December 2013) 3/4
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace
(resigned on 4th December 2013) 3/4
Executive Director
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 4/4

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29th February
2012), which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference to “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance
with the Code. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Lam Wing Tai
(as Chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr Choi Wing Koon. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the audit
or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the
Group’s financial and accounting practices, internal control and
risk management. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

3 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of the each committee member at these meetings
are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Lam Wing Tai (Chairman,
appointed on 16th October 2013)
1/1
Mr Lam Chi Keung
(appointed on 4th December 2013) 1M1
Mr Choi Wing Koon
(appointed on 4th December 2013) 1/1
Mr Ng Kwok Tung
(retired on 2nd December 2013) 2/2
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert
(resigned on 4th December 2013) 2/2
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace
(resigned on 4th December 2013) 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement of
the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 31st
December 2013 and annual consolidated financial statements
for the Year. The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal
control systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to the
commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing the
corporate governance compliance with the Codes and disclosure
in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In view of the new amendments of the Code in respect of
diversity of board members that has come into effect on 1st
September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for the internal control
of the Group, including risk management, and sets appropriate
policies having regard to the objectives of the Group. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of financial and non-financial
controls. The system of internal control is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Controls are
monitored by management review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report from pages 70 to 71 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor
of the Company by the Shareholders at the last annual general
meeting of the Company. For the Year, the remuneration payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Chan Hau Chuen, the Company Secretary for the year
ended 30th June 2013 resigned on 2nd August 2013. Mr Lam
Kit Sun, the current Company Secretary was appointed by the
Board on 2nd August 2013 and became an employee of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, Mr Lam Kit Sun possesses
the necessary qualifications and experience, and is capable of
performance of the functions of the Company Secretary. The
biographical details of Mr Lam Kit Sun are set out under the
section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” of Directors and Senior Management
Profile on page 28 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and at a
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special
general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks fit convene
special general meetings.
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The procedures for Shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to require a special general meeting to
be convened by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the
Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be verified
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the “Share
Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include
the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and the
relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

° At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company in
a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by a shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election as a director and also a
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
(including that’s person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules) shall be lodged with the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days’ notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of the
Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted by a show of hands.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION
POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow the
Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairmen of
the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the Board, committee or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
the Shareholders. The Company will also invite representatives
of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting
to answer the Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”) submit their
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30th
June 2014 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 75.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2013: same).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$338,000 (2013: Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 215 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30th June 2014
amounted to HK$53,314,000 (2013: HK$56,403,000) including
contributed surplus, of HK$51,852,000 (2013: HK$51,852,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in Note
23(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 216 of
the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during
the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Old Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Details of the
Old Scheme are as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Old Scheme

The purpose of the Old Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected Participants (as defined
below) as incentive and/or rewards for their contributions
and support to the Group and any invested entity.

(b) Participants of the Old Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and
any invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(i) any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually, an
“Employee”);

(i)  any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

(iv)  any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

(vy any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the Group
or any invested entity;
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(viy any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any invested entity;

(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any invested entity; and

(viii) any joint venture partner or counter-party to business
operation or business arrangements of the Group,
and for the purposes of the Old Scheme, the share
options might be granted to any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of the Participants.

(c) Maximum number of share options
available for issue under the Old Scheme

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
option granted and yet to be exercised under the
Old Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

(i)  The maximum number of share options available
for issue under the Old Scheme was 171,177,037
shares, representing 10% of the total number of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
29th November 2011 (the “2011 AGM”), in which
the shareholders approved the refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit under the Old Scheme.
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Old Scheme and any other schemes for the
time being of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant to each grantee must not exceed 1% of
the aggregate number of shares for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion
any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular share option. A share option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Old Scheme at any
time during a period of 10 years commencing on the Date
of Grant and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year
period.

Payment on acceptance of the share
options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on acceptance
of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Old Scheme
should be a price notified by the Board to a Participant to
whom any offer of the grant of a share option is made and
shall be at least the higher of () the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant which must be a business day;
and (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
provided that the subscription price should not be lower
than the nominal value of a share.

(d)
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the 2011 AGM, the
Company approved the refreshment of the scheme mandate
limit, which is 10% of the total number of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM, under the Old
Scheme. After the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit,
the total number of share options available for issue under the
Old Scheme as at the date of the 2011 AGM was 171,177,037,
which represented 10% of the total number of the issued shares
of the Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM.

On 27th June 2012, the Company granted 34,235,403 share
options, which represented 2% of the total number of the
issued shares of the Company as at 27th June 2012, to certain
Directors and employees of the Company at the subscription
price of HK$0.067 per share option which were vested
immediately and exercisable for a three-year period between 27th
June 2012 to 26th June 2015 (both dates inclusive). Each share
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of the Company. Particulars of the share options granted
and outstanding under the Old Scheme during the Year and as at
30th June 2014 were as follows:
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ESEEWMEE

The Directors individually and other employees of the Company RZ-ZE—MEXA=+H ARFEZ@ER K
in aggregate had the following personal interest in share options E{”ME, & T?Eﬁ RIREGH B H ) B ARAE A
granted under the Old Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares RN AL @I 2 B AR T
of the Company as at 30th June 2014
Number of
share  Number of Number of Number of Market
Period options share share share  value per
during  Price per outstanding options options options share on
which share share on at the granted  exercised outstanding grant of
Date of options are exercise of  beginning during during  at the end share
grant  exercisable options  of the year the year the year  of the year options
T
BRIER REVE rEE FEE  RELR b
B Atz ®RTEZ Bz Biffz ®RiTEZ  BRER
Participants 1IN EHAH TiEE  SRER BREHE BREYNE BREYE BEREBE Z8RTE
HK$ HK$
L2 BER
Executive Directors ~ H{7EE
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil #f/\# %% & 27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0.067 17,117,708 - - 17,117,703 0.064
26/6/2015
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRlgxE 27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0067 4,279,425 - 4279425 - 0.064
26/6/2015
Chief Operation Officer & E##
Mr Lam Siu Keung, Alvin ~ #/]\58 5 & 27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0.067 8,558,850 - 8,558,850 - 0.064
26/6/2015
Eligible employee WEEEEHIEZ  27/6/2012  27/6/2012 - 0067 4,279,425 - 4279425 - 0.064
working under an REREE 26/6/2015
employment
contract
34,235,408 - 17,117,700 17,117,708
The Old Scheme expired on 26th November 2013. Accordingto &t EIERN T —=F+— A=+ /xHEIH-

the provisions of the Old Scheme, Options granted during the
term of the Old Scheme and remain unexercised immediately
prior to the end thereof shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of grant notwithstanding the expiry
of the Old Scheme.

In view of the expiration of the Old Scheme and in order to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed in the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2nd December 2013 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The New Scheme is valid for 10 years from the date of its
adoption. The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to the following participants,
as incentives and/or rewards for their contributions to the Group
and/or any investing entity (if applicable).

(i) any person being an employee (including any executive
director), officer (including any non-executive director
and independent non-executive director), substantial
shareholder, consultant, agent, professional adviser,
customer, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner, landlord or tenant of, or any supplier or provider of
goods or services to, the Company or any subsidiary or any
invested entity of the Company, and

(i) any trustee(s) of a discretionary trust of which one or
more beneficiaries belong to any of the abovementioned
categories of persons, or any company beneficially owned
by any of the abovementioned categories of persons.

An invested entity refers to any entity in which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries holds any equity interests.

Save for the definition of “participant” as mentioned above and
necessary modifications and/or amendments made pursuant
to the Listing Rules, there is no material difference between the
terms of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme,

Under the New Scheme, the total number of share options
available for issue thereunder is 171,604,979, the full exercise
of which in subscribing for shares would represent 10% of the
total number of the issued shares of the Company as at 2nd
December 2013. None of the share options has been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the New Scheme for the period
from 2nd December 2013 (date of adoption of the New Scheme)
to 30th June 2014. Please refer to the Company’s circular dated
31st October 2013 for the principal terms and details of the New
Scheme.
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Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 21st July 2014,
the Company granted 171,604,000 share options to certain
Directors and employees of the Group at a subscription price of
HK$0.1738 per share option which were vested immediately and
exercisable for a two-year period between 21st July 2014 and
20th July 2016 (both dates inclusive). Each share option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
21st July 2014 for details.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)

Mr YEUNG Kim Piu

Mr HUNG Cho Sing (appointed on 16th October 2013)

Mr LAM Kit Sun (appointed on 30th August 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr LAM Wing Tai (appointed on 16th October 2013)

Mr LAM Chi Keung (appointed on 4th December 2013)
Mr CHOI Wing Koon (appointed on 4th December 2013)

Mr Ng Kwok Tung (retired on 2nd December 2013)
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert (resigned on 4th December 2013)
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace (resigned on 4th December 2013)

Mr Yeung Kim Piu, Mr Hung Cho Sing and Mr Lam Wing Tai will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-
laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at such
meeting.
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as specified
by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company is
satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT
SECURITIES

As at 30th June 2014, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares capital of
the Company (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”))
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interest which any such Director was taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were
as follows:
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Number of
the Company’s Percentage of
Name Nature of interest shares held shareholding
it A F
EENA EEEE B8 H BBREESL
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneill Founder of a discretionary trust 189,131,705 10.94%
(dlirector) (Note 1)
WNREE (FF) —IERREFE RIS (HiE1)
Beneficial owner 17,117,703 0.99%
EmEA A
206,249,408 11.93%
Lam Siu Keung, Alvin Beneficial owner 8,558,850 0.5%

(Chief Operation Officer)
(Note 2)
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(Ht&t2)

EmEA A

T EFR RFERERARAT



62

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEREE

Note:

1. The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited which in turn is interested in
189,131,705 shares of the Company. Central Core Resources
Limited is, the trustee of a discretionary trust under which certain
immediate family members of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil are
discretionary objects.

2. Mr. Lam Siu Keung, Alvin is the younger brother of Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil.

All interests in the shares of the Company were long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short position in the share, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations which were
required to be (a) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which they were deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in,
or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for
shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company
and its associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant
to the SFO.
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In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short position in the shares
or underlying shares in or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2014, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:
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Number of
the Company’s Percentage of

Name of shareholders shares held shareholding
BERZE AL RBRHEE BEES
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (Note 1) (K7:£1) 189,131,705 10.94%
Central Core Resources Limited (Note 1) (#1:%1) 189,131,705 10.94%
China Mobile Games and Culture Investment Limited

(formerly known as Computech Holdings Limited)

(stock code: 8081) (Note 2)
FEFEEREBR AR

(R AR ERAEBRAR)

(Bt fR5% - 8081) (Hfat2) 170,000,000 9.83%
Ever Robust Holdings Limited (Note 2) ( i #£2) 170,000,000 9.83%

Note:

7. The entire issued share capital of Globalcrest Enterprises Limited
is held by Central Core Resources Limited, the trustee of a
discretionary trust under which certain immediate family members
of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil are discretionary objects.

2. The entire issued share capital of Ever Robust Holdings Limited is
held by China Mobile Games and Culture Investment Limited

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the
shares of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2014, no other person
has any interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
and there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 17.86%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 54.69%
Sales

— the largest customer 37.63%
— five largest customers in aggregate 51.06%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Pursuant to the Company’s circular dated 29th January 2014,
Universe Films (Holdings) Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “JT Vendor”), entered into an
agreement (the “JT Agreement”) with Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneill,
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company (the
“Purchaser”) on 10th December 2013 pursuant to which the JT
Vendor agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase,
the entire issued share capital in Joy Talent Investment Limited, a
then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“JT”) for a
consideration of HK$6,277,000.

The principal assets of JT consist of an office unit at No. 1501,
15th Floor, Block 24, Jianwai SOHO, No. 39 Dongsanhuan
Zhonglu Road Chaoyang District, Beijing, the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) with a gross floor area of 3,029 square foot in a
large scale residential/office/commercial composite development,
known as Jianwai SOHO in Beijing, the PRC.

On the same date of 10th December 2013, Universe Films
(Holdings) Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Universe Laser & Video Co. Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (collectively the “UPI
Vendors”) entered into an agreement (the “UPI Agreement”) with
the Purchaser pursuant to which the UPI Vendors agreed to
sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase, the entire issued
share capital in Universe Property Investment Limited, a then
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“UPI”) for a
consideration of HK$73,862,000.
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The principal assets of UPI consist of the following properties:

(1)

an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial
building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a
2-level basement (with a saleable area of approximately
18,983 square foot) (the “Wyler Centre Properties”);

5 carparking spaces on the 2nd Floor of a 28-storey
industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium
plus a 2-level basement (the “Wyler Centre Carpark”);

an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial
building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a
2-level basement (with a saleable area of approximately
5,087 square foot);

a detached house situated in a large-scale low-rise
residential development known as Fairview Park. The
property has a gross floor area of about 1,297 square foot;
and

a unit on the 16th Floor of a 26-storey industrial building
including 2-storey car park podium known as Golden
Dragon Industrial Centre. The property has a saleable floor
area of about 1,000 square foot.

The JT Agreement and the UPI Agreement were approved by
the independent shareholders in a special general meeting of the
Company held on 19th February 2014. The JT Agreement and
the UPI Agreement were both completed on 25th February 2014
and the gains from the disposal of the entire issued share capital
of JT and UPI of approximately HK$43.7 million were recorded
during the Year.
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Prior to the UPI Agreement, the Group had been using the Wyler
Centre Properties and Wyler Centre Carpark for warehouse,
ancillary office and carparking uses. Since the completion of the
UPI Agreement which took place on 25th February 2014, the
Group has been continuing to use the Wyler Centre Properties
and Wyler Centre Carpark for the same purposes and has
through Universe Digital Entertainment Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement with UPI with a monthly rental of HK$244,000 (the
“Tenancy Agreement”). Upon the UPI Completion, UPI will be
beneficially owned by Mr. Lam who is a connected person
(as defined under the Listing Rules). Accordingly, the Tenancy
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules. Since the applicable
percentage ratios for the continuing connected transactions were
less than 5%, the Tenancy Agreement satisfied the exemption
under Rule 14A.34(1) of the then Listing Rules and was only
subject to the reporting and the announcement requirements
and, the annual review requirements set out in the then Listing
Rules, and was exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the then Listing
Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The independent non-executive directors confirmed
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c) in
accordance with the Tenancy Agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter
containing its conclusion in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 67 of this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.57 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with Rule 14A.57 of the
Listing Rules.

Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year, details of these
transactions are disclosed in Note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30th June 2014.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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&
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to
214, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 30th June 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30th June 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th September 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

As at 30th June 2014 RZ=-ZF—/FENA=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2014 2013

RIF—WOFE R-_T—=F
~A=+H RNA=1H

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M BT T BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land HE LT 6 - 3,113
Property, plant and equipment L ERY Sy 7 1,581 14,677
Investment properties "EWE 8 25,060 49,896
Other intangible assets EmEREE 9 1,858 1,858
Film rights and films in progress TR NRIE K
%’EEPZEEE? 10 32,021 171,268
Interest in a joint venture AB B NAlZ R 12(a) 924 1,145
Loan receivable from a joint venture F’&“ Hﬁl/\ ENRIZER 12(b) 7,922 7,710
Film deposits B & 39,045 37,650
Deferred income tax assets REFTS M EE 25 368 741
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENSREE 14 54,965 -
163,744 288,058
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 16 2,968 3,284
Accounts receivable FEUAR R 17 25,466 24,758
Loans receivable R E R 18 38,930 =
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffaT& AT HIE
other receivables K H At i W 5RIE 19,163 28,273
Financial assets at fair value FEiRBEUARAFE
through profit or loss ARZEREE 19 60,315 =
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 20 84,178 50,430
231,020 106,745
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHEZ
FERBEE - 1,654
Total assets mEE 394,764 396,457
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable ZA2AFHEZHFA
to the equity holders of BEERREE
the Company
Share capital % < 21 34,578 34,235
Share premium f& 10 % B 23(a) 136,842 135,293
Other reserves HmfEE 23(a) 83,492 14,229
Retained earnings RE BT 44,987 57,396
Total equity HBRE 299,899 241,153
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
CAeEEARER
As at 30th June 2014 RZ=ZF—/F~NA=1H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2014 2013

REF-—MNE R-_FT—=F
~A=+H RNA=1H

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Ff 5 BT T BT
LIABILITIES afg
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Obligations under finance lease B & AR 24 52 =
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHEE 25 4,742 246
4,794 246
Current liabilities mEAaK
Accounts payable FETER R 26 4,193 4,164
Other payables and H M FE S FRIE K
accrued charges FEET S 51,289 15,981
Deposits received BEWETE 32,446 133,825
Amount due to the ultimate FERT SRR A ]
holding company IR 27 1 1
Obligations under finance lease A& M & AR 24 17 4
Taxation payable FESLIR 2,125 1,083
90,071 155,058
Total liabilities Atk 94,865 155,304
Total equity and liabilities BEZRERE 394,764 396,457
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (&) FE 140,949 (46,659)
Total assets less current liabilites BEER A &E 304,693 241,399

The notes on pages 78 to 214 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HENETBEEF2M4E LM RUFHREMB]RE L —HH -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 214 were approved by the Board on 29th September 2014
and were signed on its behalf.

FNENRAERN4EZGAMBBREN —E-—OFAA T NBEREETSREREAEBRE -

On behalf of the Board

EAEEGm

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun
Director Director
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BALANCE SHEET
EEBMERX

As at 30th June 2014 RZ=-ZF—/FENA=+H

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M BT B IT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB RIIEE 11 72,096 72,096
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTHEE 25 — 191
72,096 72,287
Current assets wEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NETE 27 158,075 154,955
Prepayments and other receivables TERTSRI8 R H Ath
FEM FRIE 176 129
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 20 1,266 80
159,517 155,164
Total assets a0 231,613 227,451
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable ZA2AFHEZHEFA
to the equity holders of EEEARE
the Company
Share capital [N 21 34,578 34,235
Share premium R% 17 3% (B 23(b) 136,842 135,293
Other reserves HMEE 23(b) 134,558 53,342
Retained earnings RE BT (81,244) 3,061
Total equity MR 224,734 225,931
Gurent labiities Roa®
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBE R RIFIE 27 4,894 29
Accrued charges EET X 1,985 1,491
Total liabilities FER =R 6,879 1,520
Total equity and liabilities HEZRER 231,613 227,451
Net current assets mBEEFE 152,638 153,644
Total assets less current liabilities B&EERTEF&E 224,734 225,931

The notes on pages 78 to 214 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNETBEEF214E LT RUFHREMB]RE L —HD -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 214 were approved by the Board on 29th September 2014
and were signed on its behalf.

BRETCEEFAEZGAVBREN_E—NFNAZ T LEKESSHEREEGEE -
On behalf of the Board

AEEGW

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun
Director Director
BV BR R
EFE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2014 #EZE = ZF—[JF A=+ HIFF/E

2014 2013
—F-MmF —F—=
Note HK$’000 \H K$'OO£)
M5 BT B IT
Revenue & 5 205,211 79,106
Cost of revenue &N 28 & 29 (181,829) (50,049)
Impairment losses of film rights EERE 2 REEE 28 (1,211) (7,381)
Selling expenses HEBH 28 & 29 (3,643) (3,136)
Administrative expenses THRER 28 & 29 (35,541) (27,924)
Other income E A 30 4,584 175
Other losses — net H b &5 18 — 558 32 (655) (115)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 31 43,744 =
Increase in fair value of investment HEWME 2 AN FEE
properties 8 2,344 4,228
Unrealised fair value gain on KEFEHF 2 RKERATE
investment securities Wz 28,004 =
Fair value loss in issuance of BITIE L MRBRERE 2
unlisted warrants NEEEE 35 (81,206)
Other operating income/(expenses) ~ H A& &W A (&) 28 1,411 (188)
Finance income U A 33 536 397
Finance cost B 75 B AR 12(b) = (1,090)
Share of (loss)/profit of a joint venture E{E& & A A2
( Eﬂa ) / b 12(a) (221) 1,087
Loss before income tax l‘% FRS Bl 18 (18,472) (4,890)
Income tax (expense)/credit NEH (BRH),Bl# 34 (5,855) 213
Loss attributable to the equity ZIS’A AEREEA
holders of the Company fEhEiE (24,327) (4,677)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hin<m (B18) s
income:
ltem that will not be reclassified HetesmorizEn
subsequently to profit and loss: ZIEB
Change in value of available-for- AHEEeREEL
sale financial assets & TE%@J 14 (35) =
Fair value adjustment upon THREFERS
transfer from land and buildings wEMEZ
to investment properties NEERE - 10,980
Total comprehensive ERAREFHAA
(loss)/income for the year EEE NEHE
attributable to the equity (B18) WHBHE
holders of the Company (24,362) 6,303
Loss per share for loss ENEQNFAEZFEA
attributable to the equity FE15 518 2 B B 18
holders of the Company during (LABALE)
the year (expressed in HK cent)
— basic —HK 37 (1.42) 0.27)
— diluted —#E 37 (1.42) (0.27)
The notes on pages 78 to 214 are an integral part of these #HRE78E = %21452M¢E%&tﬁﬁ?éﬁﬁ%
consolidated financial statements. WK —H»
T -UFFHR BFREBERERAF



CON?Q\I,ID%}JTEED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I“m /\"n"

For the year ended 30th June 2014 #Z T —VFENHA=+HILFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

ANREBEEAES
Share Share Other Retained Total
capital premium reserves earnings equity
% BpiEE Hitthkts REBRF s
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt &E BB BB BB BT BETT
Balance at 1st July 2012 RZFE-Z%£+tA—H
Z &8 34,235 135,293 3,249 62,073 234,850
Comprehensive income eEKE
Loss for the year FEER - - - (4,677) (4.677)
Other comprehensive income Htt2Em &
Fair value adjustment upon transfer it RIEFEEZE
from land and buildings to RENMEZRTE
investment properties BE 7 - - 10,980 - 10,980
Total other comprehensive income Hittz RS EE - - 10,980 - 10,980
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2HK %/ (E#H)
for the year “am - - 10,980 (4,677) 6,303
Balance at 30th June 2013 R-F—-=5£~”A=t+H
b ] 34,235 135,293 14,229 57,396 241,153
Balance at 1st July 2013 RZE—-=%£tA—H
b4 34,285 135,293 14,229 57,396 241,153
Comprehensive income eEKE
Loss for the year FEERE - = = (24,327 (24,327)
Other comprehensive income ,ii i 2 E I
Change in value of available-for-sale HEESMEEL
financial assets fgfﬁx g 14 - = (39) = (39)
Total other comprehensive loss HizEEREE - = (35) = (39)
Total comprehensive loss FRLEBEREHE
for the year - - (35) (24,327) (24,362)
Transactions with owners HHEBAZLHE
Employee share option scheme EEERETE
- exercise of share options — 1T ERE 343 1,549 (745) = 1,147
Issue of unlisted warrants BIOREMRRES - - 81,961 - 81,961
Transfer of revaluation reserve in P& B A R
investment properties to retained RENEERRE
earnings upon disposal of subsidiaries & =R E 27l - - (11,918) 11,918 =
Total contributions by and ANABBEANTER
distribution to owners of mALREE AR IR
the Company, recognized 2B EENEET
directly in equity R 343 1,549 69,298 11,918 83,108
Balance at 30th June 2014 RZF-MEXA=+H
Z&8 34,578 136,842 83,492 44,987 299,899
The notes on pages 78 to 214 are an integral part of these 2RI FHRE T’

HNET8EEFE214H
®ERZ—HH

consolidated financial statements.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:iﬁ iﬁﬁé?lﬂbiﬁl%ﬁ

For the year ended 30th June 2014 #EZE = ZF—[JF A=+ HIFF/E

2014 2013
—_E—MmE T =%
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
M5 BT T B IT
Cash flows from EERHZHRERE
operating activities
Cash generated from operations BEEAZRS 39 31,011 112,512
Cash flows from investing activites REFHZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and BAME  #ZNEE
equipment (167) (854)
Purchase of investment properties BAKEYE - (25,422)
Payment for the acquisition of 40%  R& & QA Al Z40%H 25
interest in a joint venture 2 BB K 12(a) - (58)
Loan granted to a joint venture BRYEERRIZER 12(b) - (8,800)
Increase in film deposits BRI 2N (1,395) (4,350)
Payments for film rights and B R EER 2
films in progress BEAIR 10 (24,309) (94,060)
Investment in available-for-sale FERBREATFEAR
financial assets ZERMEERE 14 (55,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEMRBARZ
subsidiaries Fr{S k38 39(a) 79,624 -
Proceeds from disposal of HERFE ﬁ EIERE
non-current assets held for sale BEZFEHIE 39(b) 1,780 -
Interest received B H B 324 397
Net cash generated from/(used in) wEEBEE, (FTA)Z
investing activities FIRE 857 (133,147)
Cash flows from financing activities & é EEZHRERE
Proceeds from issuance of unlisted ~ ZF{73E E T RRER 2
warrants Fr 1S 308 755 -
Proceeds from shares issued under 15 15 8% A% £ =1 21 2%
share option scheme f& 10 2 P S sk 38 1,147 =
Capital element of finance XNBREHEE 2
leases payments BRI D 39(d) (22) (11)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEEsESL, (A2
financing activities FIRE 1,880 (11)
Net increase/(decrease) incashand HERREEEWZ
cash equivalents i GRD) 33,748 (20,646)
Cash and cash equivalents REVNRERREEEY
at beginning of the year 50,430 71,076
Cash and cash equivalents RERRERBEEEEY
at end of the year 20 84,178 50,430
The notes on pages 78 to 214 are an integral part of these FNE7T8EEFE214B 2T A SR A TS
consolidated financial statements. WER2—FHD e
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in distribution of films in various videogram
formats, film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights, leasing of investment properties, securities
investment and money lending.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$'000”),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board on
29th September 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which is a collective term referred to all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and
Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
non-current assets held for sale and available-for-sale
financial assets, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The actual results may differ from these estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

RE M RRNEE

2 EESSBREE@

2.1

Am B A AE

AEENGEMBEREEREEE
MBREE ([FEVHREE
Al mE BEMBEREEA RS
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BERNEREEM RS ER
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BRELKRAERE XHREY
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HENEREENE[RBRAFE
IR {E L ERT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN RS E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESSBREE@

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 IR EE (&)

EEGITMAGEBEMRAEER
S RT B B R A Rk AT R B AT ER AR
BE T R] REIERTME BT 5
EEA  REEE RS AW
REFDRA T EE XA RO
AT RARIERT BB MG ER -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. The Group has adopted the new and revised
HKFRSs below, which are relevant to its operations,

in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits BB ERE19% EERF
(Z2—F
BIEET)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial BB R BUMBRE
Statements (Z%—F
BIEET)
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates BB G ERESE RBEAAKAE
and Joint Ventures (Z2—F INCIWAL S
mIEET)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) ~ Government Loans ERUBREEN  BEEXR
E15% (BFIA)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Disclosures — Offsetting ERRBREREN  BE-RKEERE
Financial Assets and E7% (BFTA) ERERAR
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,  Consolidated Financial EEMBREEN  REUBERX M
and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint E10%  BANE BRHEREER
(Amendment) Arrangements and WEENEI1RER Hin B

Disclosure of Interests in BB mEER @ BEMES
Other Entities: Transition E125%% (1BFTA)
Guidance

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BERMBEREEN  AVEHE

£13%

Hong Kong (IFRIC) Stripping Costs in the EF (BBRHBRE BRBESEERR
Interpretation Production Phase of a ZEZET) GOBEE0 AN
(HK(FRIC") 20 Surface Mine ([ (BBt

BEREZES)])
RBF20%

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements FEMERE —TTNEERE

Projects 2009-2011 Cycle T ——5RH
ZEENE

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has
not led to any significant changes in the accounting
policies applied in these consolidated financial
statements, and has no material effect on the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted any new standards,
amendments and interpretation of the HKFRSs
which have been issued but not yet effective for the
accounting period beginning 1st July 2013, details of
which are set out in Note 47.

RE M RRNEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN R E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the group has control. The
group controls an entity when the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

@

Business combinations

The group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either
at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

@

©)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

2 EEERHRAEE =

2.2 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN RS E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

2 EESSBREE@

) HERBERA]
SN eI
B REBZEARE
BERREREGEE
BZRAFEEHAE
EREEEEDHER
@ AR - LE & AR
JIEB E AR BER
A EMEEZIREE
@ ERAFERERK
[EINI=N ;RN [N S
b2 B S EREZLE
BHEEEMERIZE
WASEEERLESR
MEEXRBZIAA
AR e b 22 R BE BOR SE AT
EEME2EPEERZ
CHEHNOBEERG:-

KM B AR Z R E R A
BOREARR - KA BRREZ
BEEREHERA -HEARZE
BEAREREARS B
BN R GRIA AR

e BIPTIE P B A IR E 2
BB PR E RN E A
AREREEHEZ 2K
SRR HZIE N BB
BHRRAZFEEBEBRE
HREEFE(BEBREIRN
FAMBwRAZREER
AR R EETRERIH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESSBREE@

2.3 Joint arrangements 2.3 Bta L HE

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as of 1st January 2012. Under HKFRS
11 investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures and joint operations.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 EEEFHRAE =

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Joint arrangements (Continued)

Joint operations arise where the investors have rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of an
arrangement. A joint operator accounts for its share
of the assets, liabilities, Joint operations arise where
the investors have rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities of an arrangement. Investments in
joint operations are accounted for such that each joint
operator recognises its assets (including its share of
any assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share
of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue (including
its share of revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation) and its expenses (including its
share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint
operator accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well
as revenues and expenses, relating to its interest in
the joint operation in accordance with the applicable
standards.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Chairman of the
Group that makes strategic decisions.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, expenses and segment performance include
Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available
to other external parties for similar services. These
transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

transactions between segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and liabilities, cash and cash
equivalents, deferred income tax assets, deferred
income tax liabilities, taxation payable and interest
income.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within ‘other losses — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to
changes in amortised cost are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and other changes in carrying amount
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESSBREE@

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 xR NEE

Land and buildings comprise mainly warehouses and
offices. Leasehold land classified as financial lease
and all other property, plant and equipment is stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRKRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 EEERHRAE =

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Leasehold land classified Shorter of useful life or

as finance lease lease term
Buildings Shorter of useful life or
lease term

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or
lease term

Machinery and equipment 3 — 5 years
Others 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other losses — net’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESSBREE@

2.7 Investment properties 2.7 HEWYHE

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both
and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value, representing operating market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If this information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations of the investment properties are performed
in accordance with the guidance issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. These valuations are
reviewed annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases
in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN RS E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for accounting purposes.

2.8 Leased assets

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payment made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over
the accounting periods covered by the lease
term except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEERHRAE =

2.8 Leased assets (Continued) 28 HEEE (&

The cost of acquiring land held under an WELCEHEETRETH
operating lease is stated in the consolidated WK ARG EEBERA
balance sheet as ‘Leasehold land’ and is ARSI B HE L] WA
amortised to the consolidated statement of BEREEZRMAOFRANELE

comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term except where

EER RN - HERED
ENBEREEME  AlER

the property is classified as an investment & °

property.

Leases of assets where the Group has NWAEBGEEHEEERS
substantially all the risks and rewards of BERBRIDERRER B

ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-
current borrowings. The interest element of the
finance cost is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The
investment properties acquired under finance
leases are carried at their fair value.
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e BRKRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 EEERHRAEE =

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Impairment of investments in

subsidiaries and joint venture and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation, and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment of
each reporting date.

2.10 Non-current assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets are classified as held-for-sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Investment properties, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.7.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

2.9 MIB AR MEZE AR

FIFEREERE ZRIE

BRBEEEAERFHcEERTE
MO EREFRMELETAS B
BEHHRABERNER R REE
AR EEWmES - A EREETT
maf MERBRREEZREER
HE AT R £ 3R 2 Z R AR - T
Bl &N EE 2 D FHERRHEX
ARERBEME RS ERE-
EXXRENFEREE (REE
AN = BB RS B B LR E =2
BRI AR O TR

20FIFLEZHFRBEE

EIRBEENREESEEER
—IHHER 5 W E %8 AR
RIEEAEE AIERERBEED
BERARELE REEEREKHEE
BN SRR ER AR E B ERIEE
SRR - IREME (BEFELE) -
TG 4 A e PR O P 2.7 2 R 2K
#E-



NU“STO“ECOMWUDMEDHNNWW&SUWHM%”S
n‘/-.l_\ (=] /ji‘i—?&%ﬁﬁai

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEERHRAEE =

2.11 Other intangible assets P EMEFEEE

The club membership is carried at cost less
impairment losses.

The club membership has an indefinite useful life
and is thus not subject to amortisation. The club
membership is tested at least annually for impairment
and is reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

2.12 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise ‘loan
receivable from a joint venture’, ‘accounts
receivable’, ‘deposits paid, prepayments
and other receivables’, ‘loans receivable’
and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the
consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.18,
2.19 and 2.20).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHHREE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
212 REE (&

D]E%

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
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of the reporting period. EIERBEENRN-
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets BEREBEMIENSREE
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on ERSBHER XHAERE
which the Group commits to purchase or sell 7% HBESIHEREEL
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at CHITESMEE HIRE
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial %JJ RIZE QN ENR H KA

assets. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through to profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

Realised and unrealised gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as
‘Revenue’ and ‘Unrealised fair value gain on
investment securities’ respectively in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘/-.l_\ (=] /j%ﬁ#&'ﬁﬁﬁaé

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEERHRAE =

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 214 SR EE 2 RE (&)

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.16 Film rights and films in progress

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their useful lives, with reference to projected
revenues.

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Cost of films is transferred to film rights
upon completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication
that assets included in film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

217 Film deposits

Film deposits comprise deposits paid for the
acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artistes and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under
agreements for acquisition and production of film
rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision for
film deposits is made to the extent that they are
not expected to generate any future revenue for the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of accounts and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment of accounts and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the accounts receivable is impaired. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss is recognised in ‘other
operating income/(expenses)’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for accounts receivable.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against ‘other operating
income/expenses’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESFBREE@

2.19 Loans receivable 219 EIKE X

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of loan
receivable is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

For assets carried at amortised costs, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

(@  Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

() The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Loans receivable (Continued)

(d) It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;
or

()  Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

(i)  national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’'s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the profit or loss. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the company may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEZEEFBEHE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Loans receivable (Continued) 210 BN E K (#0)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the MR EZBARRESESERD
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can i 5207 0 A] %5 i b B T s R (B 1% 3%
be related objectively to an event occurring after the E2EH (IWEBAEEFRNRE)
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement B ABAAERBERERE
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the RirE2HERERER -

previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents 220R e NIREFEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, RERREEMREFERS
deposits held at call with banks and brokers and RITRIEEPOR e KREEHBR
other short-term highly liquid investments with original =& A S A T H bR B S i Eh 1t
maturities of three months or less. & -

2.21 Share capital 2.21 {7
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. LB OEAER -
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue HBITHIR S R E AR 2R
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a AR IR IAR R ER P A
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Fr 1S 3038 2 R IE -

2.22 Accounts payable 2.22 FETBR K
Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods FERERFABERBLEEE P R
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary JE 7 BB B 7 o ok AR TS 1 B S AT 9
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable B-MEMNERRE—FRUA(H
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due FRAEEBESLEAHANAN)E
within one year or less (or in the normal operating H-AloEARBEE -FRAIS
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are HARERBEE:.

presented as non-current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRKRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESFBREE@

2.23 Current and deferred income tax 223 & B MR IEPTISRL ()

(Continued)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

P ES R 52
EEFERABABERE
EMAENHREREEME
BEEREMBRROKEE
ZHEMEREEMBER R
- BEEREHREERS
(TBRELXAH)THEE
FABEOI IR MERS
BRI EEHREHERN
& B MMERRR - BRIEFTS
MEMEEE S HMK
BE MM YRR ELEH
BHEEZRIELHEHR
BEAERENSEERZ
B (RIED) MEE °

EIEFTS I E E I Al BE
R &SR & A Al 3R
= RAE TR RER -

S EEE 2
ELEFSH A BB LR
BRENRGELTHELZER
MEREZEMEHE  BRERN
SEAAEFIELERAERA
B EREZRE 2 BROKE M
EREZEEABRERER
BE TSR DAIRRIN

T EFR RFERERARAT

109



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N R E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised
on deductible temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESFBREE@

2.24 Employee benefits 2.24 [ B 1& A

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

The Group contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund in Hong Kong, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee — administered funds.
The pension plan is funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant Group
companies.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees (and including
directors) as consideration for share options
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the share options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted:

including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

2 EESHBREE @

2.25 1% 17 ¥R B

REERE — AR R
g EZAtE T BRENRE
B (BRES) ZRHBERE
BASEREREZRE - ER
RIBVER T REAEm R H
ZIREH A EERRER -
SHEREBRZEESEIZE
PR TR A FHEERE

s  BREEMWMBERBEGN
(MEBZE)

o IEEEMARERIED
BRAZEEGRTM
EEZTE (MANEE
N HEBRRBEER

BTERERANEE

fE) i R

0

i

\

o  BIETMIEFEIKME
FE (MR TEIRH
P



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EESFBREE@

2.25 Share-based compensation (Continued) 2.25 Rt 15 = B

(%)

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of share options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of share options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the share options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRKRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 EEERHRAE =

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based compensation (Continued)

The grant by the Company of share options
over its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity financial statements.

2.26 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: () the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; (ii) it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(iiiy the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provision are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount

of revenue can be reliably measured, when,

it is

probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below.

(@

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed.

Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised upon the delivery of
the pre-recorded audio visual products and the
materials for video features including the master
tapes to the customers, in accordance with the
terms of the underlying contracts.

Film exhibition income is recognised when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment is
established.

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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B BRKRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

)

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable
is impaired, the group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Revenue from the disposal of investment
securities is recognised in the transfer of
ownership.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

2 EEERHRAEE =

2.27 W &8
(e

ZLW

B A T B BR A KR
TTHERR © fi — R E R SR R
TAHIRRE  AKERERE
BEREEARESRE  BHRT
ARERNEBEWMEER
KEERE  WIFEHDELR
RNBWA - EREERKE
WHRBEH N EWAERBRE
BRI R FER

HEKREES 2 WS TR
BRI R -

2.28 LB 7k

AR AR

DR B R B

ARFIBRR AN HEARANEH
MR EMBRERAIIREE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
policies for managing these risks are summarised

below.

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the United States dollars (“‘US$”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities. Hong Kong dollars is pegged to
the United States dollars and thus foreign
exchange exposure is considered to be
minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets (except short-term
deposits) and liabilities. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its interest-bearing
assets including short-term bank deposits
and other bank deposit.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 30th June 2014, if the interest rate
increased/decreased by 50 basis-point
with all other variables held constant, loss
attributable to the equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 30th June
2014 would have been approximately
HK$3,000 lower/higher (2013: HK$16,000),
mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest income on the short-term bank
deposits.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of investments held
by the Group and classified on the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale or at fair value through
profit or loss. The group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage
its price risk from investments in equity
securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the limits set by
the Group.

The Group’s investments in equity of
other entities that are publicly traded are
listed in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3 HHEKERE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M5 E e A = (@)

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents and deposits with bank and
financial institutions, loans receivable, as well
as credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Management has policies in place
to monitor the exposures to these credit risks
on an on-going basis.

For banks and financial institutions, deposits
are only placed with reputable banks. For credit
exposures with customers, the Group has
put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of accounts
receivable falls within the recorded allowances.

As at 30th June 2014, all of the Group’s loan
receivable were neither past due nor impaired
(2013: not applicable).

As at 30th June 2014, interest receivables were
neither past due nor impaired. These related to
a number of third party customers for whom
there was no history of default (2013: not
applicable).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Loans receivable

Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment on individual
loans is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

The Group manages and analyses the
credit risk for each of their new and
existing clients before standard payment
terms and conditions are offered. If
there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of
the customer based on the customer’s
financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set
based on the value of collaterals provided
by customers and internal or external
ratings in accordance with limits set by
the directors. The utilisation of credit limits
is regularly monitored. The credit quality
classification of loan receivable and their
respective interest receivables using the
Group’s credit rating system is set out in
the table below:

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

3 HHEKERE @

3.1 B1& R

ERE T
RIEBELR ARG
EERUEBAE (L
BESRNBR BT 2H
WE ARREERR
BARBENERELE
Bl % 5 4G R 2R (B B
(h

RER AR A0 5 BRI R
gtz a - AEES
EREDMESRTE
FRRAEBEFPHNEER
B o B BB L B0 RF AR
AREEERETPH
FATSAON B B &
Hit R EFEEFHE
EEx=-EpRERRE
TRBEERRTEARE
ERE P iz m
BB E R RSHMBRE AR T
BE-EERENER
EEHETER -RIE
AEBEEFRES
R ER R EE B R
MNEMEEERIRH
IR TR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Loans receivable (Continued)

RE M RRNEE

3 HHEKERE @

3.1 M5 E e A = (@)

() ERE (&)

As at 30th June
RANA=+H

2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Performing B#4 38,930 -
Doubtful RER = -
Loss &8 - =
38,930 -

The Group considers the loans receivable
as doubtful if the repayment of principal
and/or of interest has been overdue
for more than 3 months and principal,
accrued interest and/or future interest
may not be fully secured by the fair value
of collateral at its prevailing market price.
The Group considers the loans receivable
as loss if the repayment of principal
and/or of interest has been overdue for
more than 6 months and the collection
of principal and/or of interest in full is
improbable. The Group estimates and
recognises impairment losses for the
loans receivable considered as ‘doubtful’
and ‘loss’, taking account of the fair
values of the collateral at prevailing market
prices is inadequate to cover the loans
receivable. Since all principal and interest
that were not overdue, there were no
doubtful or loss of loans and interest
receivables as at 30th June 2014 (2013:
not applicable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

The Group also performs collective
assessment of the loans receivable
considered as ‘performing’ by grouping
together all its receivables with similar
credit risk characteristics. The impairment
review is carried out on all those loans
receivable based on the historical
impairment rates. Since the historical
impairment rate is zero during the year,
the directors therefore consider that the
collective impairment loss is nil as at 30th
June 2014 (2013: not applicable).

In general, the loan officers propose to
the management of the Company on a
monthly basis the amount of provision to
be made.

Collateral is obtained in respect of
secured loans which made up 23%
(2013: not applicable) of the total loans
receivable as at 30th June 2014, and
comprise equity securities pledged
against the balances. As at 30th June
2014, the fair value of collateral for
secured loans which are listed equity
securities at its prevailing market
prices amounted to approximately
HK$8,800,000 (2013: not applicable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 WMHEARKREIRE @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B B A = ()
(i) Accounts receivable (i) JEHWERFL
As at 30th June 2014, the Group granted RZZE—NEARA=F
the credit limit to two (2013: two) debtors. A AEERMRE (=
The table below shows the credit limit and E—ZF - WEB)EW
balance of the debtors at the respective EREFETEER
balance sheet dates. B TRITNEEH
EEARKERETFDN
EERBERA:
As at 30th June
RAB=+H
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-ZF
Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised
EERE 2R FERSE EfFA
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL BETL BETIL BETIL

Counterparty RHHH

Customer A EFA 330 119 330 101
Customer B ZFB 200 141 200 150

T EFR RFERERARAT

123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHAREE @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B Rk A = (/)
(i) Accounts receivable (Continued) (i)  JERERF (&)
No credit limits were exceeded during EREHR TEEE
the reporting period, and management B FTEREE B
does not expect any losses from non- BB E HLEER
performance by these counterparties. SE AT TNBAMEET
&5 18 -
The credit quality of financial assets R HATN RBER & B
that are neither past due nor impaired BEZFEERT2R
can be assessed by reference to the RSEFBRENIERE
counterparty’s default history. The current BR1E R AE - KRB B
portion of accounts receivable, which is BV EA FE Us BR 3K 9 4T &0
not impaired is analysed below: e
As at 30th June
WANA=+H
2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T B IT
Accounts receivable FE Y BR FX
New customers NEP
(less than 12 months) (L1218 A) 51 224
Existing customers RBEEP
(more than 12 months) (12f@ A LA L) 3,991 625
Total b 4,042 849
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(i)

=)
)

B 35 SR AR B

3 HHEKERE @

3.1 B1& R

AN
Bes K 2= ()

Accounts receivable (Continued) (i)  JERERF (&)
As at 30th June 2014, accounts RZZ—MFE XA
receivable of HK$21,424,000 (2013: =t+tR - BaHAERXR
HK$23,909,000) were past due but not BE 2’ R A
impaired. These relate to a number of B #2191 424 ,0007T
independent customers for whom there T —Z=ZF B
is no recent history of default. The ageing 23,909,0007T) * % &
analysis of these accounts receivable by BREN Y B 2% 4 3 B A
due dates is as follows: HREENBLERS
8 o 5% 5 JE W AR FUR B
HEZRETOT
2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Up to 90 days 90H AN 1,161 9,326
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 14,753 4,761
Over 180 days 180H LA E 5,510 9,822
21,424 23,909
Cash and cash equivalents (i) BHELRHELZEY
The Group’s credit risk arises from its AEBEZEERRBRKE
bank deposits and trade receivables HRTHERKBEZEK

while that of the Company arises from
bank deposits and amounts due from
subsidiaries. The management considers
the credit risk for the amounts due from
subsidiaries under the Company is low.

RE MARBZEE
[ Bz IR B #R 1T 17 B
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T EFR RFERERARAT

125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

To mitigate the risk arising from banks,
the Group and the Company place their
deposits to certain reputable banks with
low credit risk ranked by an independent
party. See note 20 for further disclosure

on credit risk.

None of the terms of financial assets which are
past due or impaired have been renegotiated
during the year ended 30th June 2014 (2013:

same).

The Group manages its liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash and monitoring the
liquidity requirements from time to time.

The table below analyses the Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period from the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHEKERE @

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M5 E e A = (@)

Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total
1EUT 1E E b ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT T
Group rE
At 30th June 2014 R-F—MNERXB=+H
Accounts payable FERTERR 4,193 = 4,198
Other payables and ~ E fth 15 SR I8 R fE AT 37 (T
accrued charges 51,289 - 51,289
Obligations under AT E AL
finance leases 17 52 69
Amount due to the PR RARIERR A R RIE
ultimate holding
company 1 - 1
At 30th June 2013 RIZE-=F~"A=+H
Accounts payable JERTERR 4,164 = 4,164
Other payables and ~ H b BT A M E T H
accrued charges 15,981 - 15,981
Obligations under BEMREAE
finance leases 4 - 4
Amount due to the e B A4 IR A B FUE
ultimate holding
company 1 - 1
Company ¥ YA
At 30th June 2014 RZFE—MNEAA=+H
Amounts due to FESTF B A R RIE
subsidiaries 4,894 - 4,894
Accrued charges [EET 2 1,985 = 1,985
At30th June 2013 RZF—-=£xHA=+H
Amounts due to FERTHI B A R FIE
subsidiaries 29 - 29
Accrued charges R 1,491 - 1,491
At 30th June 2014, the Group had no RZE-—OFRA=+H =&
borrowing facilities (2013: same). SETEEREE (ZF—=

F AR -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
(including obligations under finance leases) divided by
total capital. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the year ended 30th June 2014, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2013, was to
maintain a lower gearing ratio. The gearing ratio at
30th June 2014 is zero (2013: zero).

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 30th June 2014 by levels of inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such techniques are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 30th June
2014 and 30th June 2013.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

3 HHEKERE @

3.3 A EMHET (&)
.« HERABBUFKETHE
45 BBt A BuE (BN
BEEARE) (£3E)

TREFR=F-MEXA=+A
R=B—=#XA=TRRATE
HENAREAERAMS-

RIFE-—NE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 30th June 2014 ~A=+AH $1/E $2/8 %38 kel
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets gE BETT BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets at BRERELATE
fair value through profit AENEREE
or loss
- Equity securities —-Bndh 60,315 - - 60,315
Loan receivable from A EARER
ajoint venture - 7,922 - 7,922
Available-for-sale tHEEREE
financial assets
- Equity securities ~-BnEH - - 54,965 54,965
Total assets BEE 60,315 7,922 54,965 123,202
RZE-—Z% Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 30th June 2013 ~A=+AH F1/E $2/8 %38 kel
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Asset BE BETT BETT BETT BETT
Loan receivable from FEhRAEARER
ajoint venture - 7,710 - 7,710
Total asset BEE - 7,710 = 7,710
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include other techniques, such as
discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2
during the year.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets,
including accounts and other receivables, loans
receivable, amounts due from related parties, and
cash and cash equivalents; and the Group’s financial
liabilities, including trade and other payables, accrued
charges and amounts due to related parties a,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their
short-term maturities.

The long-term loan receivable from a joint venture
is a financial asset with fixed or determinable
payments that is not quoted in an active market. The
financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 30th June 2014

A MR

3 MHEREE @

3.3 RN 1EfHET (&

=

~

REJNFEIEIEAENBE=Z
MERA=THILFEZEH:

Available-for-sale

financial assets Total
A HENEMERE mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Assets &E B IT BT
At 1st July 2013 WZZE—=F+H—H - -
Additions nNE 54,965 54,965
At 30th June 2014 RZZE—MFRA=1H 54,965 54,965
Significant Range of Relationship of
30th June Fair value  Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable
Description 2014 hierarchy  technique input input input to fair value
—E-mE EXTABE TABR RABERHNE
7 ~A=+A NFEER wEHE BB BABEEE HOATENRR

Available-for-sale financial assets

THHEEMERE
Available-for-sale financial assets 54,965 Level 3 Share of net asset N/A
and recent
transaction price*
IHEESREE 54,965 F3E HMEEERER TER

AR HER

The investment classified as level 3 and presented
in the table above is not traded in an active market.
These have been valued based on information derived
from individual fund report from the fund manager
and considering relevant factors if deemed necessary.
The Group has determined that the reported net
asset value represent fair value of the captioned
investments.

N/A N/A

TER TER

DERESBL 2N ERZI
BN EBWNERTER S - %EFE
ETyIRER B A K2 2 @R &
EREZENLZEERERVE
ZHEBAERETHE - AEEE
EEMERcEEFENREL
MITE 2 RNF(E-
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e MR R IR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@)

Impairment of film rights, films in
progress and film deposits

The Group assesses annually whether the film rights,
films in progress and film deposits have suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2. Such annual assessment is
performed specifically for each film and film deposit
at each balance date with reference to the cast or
scale of each film, current market conditions and
each film deposit recipient’s reputation, trade history
and current financial position. According to the
management’s cash inflow forecast in respect of
each film title and realisation of each film deposit, an
impairment losses of film rights HK$1,211,000 (2013:
HK$7,381,000) and no write-off of film deposits
(2013: HK$77,000) was recognised respectively in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
to reduce the carrying amounts of certain fim rights
and film deposits to their recoverable amounts.
If projected cash inflow from these films were to
deteriorate, additional provision for impairment may
be required.

As at 30th June 2014, the carrying value of
film rights, films in progress and film deposits
amounted to approximately HK$71,066,000 (2013:
HK$208,918,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Provision for impairment of accounts

receivable

The provision policy for accounts receivable of the
Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability of
those receivables and management’s judgement. A
considerable judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history and repayment pattern of each customer.
During the year, no impairment loss was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (2013: Nil). If the financial conditions of these
customers were to deteriorate, additional provision
for impairment may be required. As at 30th June
2014, the carrying value of accounts receivable
amounted to approximately HK$25,466,000 (2013:
HK$24,758,000).

Amortisation of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected
revenue of the film rights based on the shorter of the
underlying license period and their useful lives in order
to ascertain the amount of amortisation charges for
each reporting period. The appropriateness of the
amortisation estimate requires the use of judgement
and estimates with reference to the prevailing and
future market conditions and the expected cash flow
pattern of the projected revenue. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material
effect on the amortisation expenses.

A MR
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n\l-ﬁ

B BRKRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Estimated valuation of investment

properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based
on property valuation techniques which involve,
inter alia, certain estimates including comparable
sales in the relevant market, current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation report,
management has exercised their judgement and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of
the current market condition.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in these estimates and assumptions
could have a material effect on the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology as well as
operational and financing cash flow.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(€)

Fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets (Continued)

If declines in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets below cost were considered significant or
prolonged, additional impairment may be required.

In view of the adverse trend of financial health and
business outlook for the investee, including factors
such as industry and sector performance as well
as operational and financing cash flow, various
operating metrics fell short of management’s previous
expectation, therefore, management determined
the investment in available-for-sale financial assets
is impaired. During the year, an impairment loss of
HK$35,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (2013: Nil).

Recognition of deferred income tax
assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note
2.23, deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised,
and it is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax assets
are realised. In determining the deferred income tax
assets to be recognised, management is required
to estimate the future applicable tax rate for each
subsidiary of the Company at each tax jurisdiction
and the profitability of each subsidiary, so as to
estimate the future utilization of tax losses. Any
difference between these estimates and the actual
outcome will impact the Group’s result in the period
in which the actual outcome is determined.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

9)

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements to
produce and distribute television series and films.
The Group has participating interests ranging from
29% to 82% in these joint arrangements. The Group
has joint control over these arrangements as under
the contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all
relevant activities. The Group’s joint arrangements
involve the joint control by the venturers of the assets
contributed to the joint arrangement and dedicated
to the purposes of the joint arrangement. The
assets are used to obtain benefits for the venturers.
Each venturer may take a share of the output from
the assets and each bears an agreed share of the
expenses incurred. These joint arrangements do
not involve the establishment of a corporation,
partnership or other entity, or a financial structure
that is separate from the venturers themselves.
Therefore, these arrangements are classified as joint
operations of the Group. The determination of the
relevant activities under joint operations requires
management’s significant judgement.

Impairment of loans and other
receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of
loans and other receivables based on the estimate
of the recoverability of these receivables. Provisions
are applied to loans and other receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of loans and other receivables requires
the use of estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact carrying value of receivables and provision
for impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

()

Accounting for the unlisted warrants
(the “Warrants”)

In determining the accounting for the Warrants
issued at a value substantially higher than the
identifiable consideration received, management
has considered the purpose of issuing the Warrants,
identity of investors, volatility of share price and
so on. Accordingly, management concluded that
the Warrants should be accounted for as financial
instrument, and meet the definition of equity
instruments.

Management uses its judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for valuating the
Warrants issued in accordance with the Warrant
Placing Agreement entered by the Company not
quoted in an active market. Assumptions are based
on quoted market share price of the Company
adjusted for specific features of the instrument
with unobservable inputs. The valuation requires
judgement in determining the expected volatility
of the share price, the dividends expected on the
shares, the risk-free interest rate during the life of the
Warrants. More details are set out in Note 35.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Primary reporting format — business
segments

The CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports, as below:

Distribution of films in various videogram formats

= Film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights

- Leasing of investment properties

- Securities investments

Money lending

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results. This
measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring
expenditure from the operating segments, such as gain
on disposal of non-current assets held for sale, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries and fair value loss in issuance
of unlisted warrants. Finance income and income tax
expense/(credit) are not included in the result for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided, except as noted below, to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

Total assets, excluding investment properties, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans receivable,
inventories, accounts receivable, and other unallocated
assets (included in leasehold land, property, plant
and equipment, deposits paid, prepayment and other
receivables) are managed on a central basis. These are part
of the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Primary reporting format — business
segments (Continued)

The Group’s inter-segment transactions mainly consist
of licensing of fim rights, which are transferred at cost.
The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

There are no sales between geographical segments.

Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments

Distribution of films in various videogram formats is solely
operated in Hong Kong and Macau, while the Group
operates its film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights in six (2013: five) main geographical segments.
Segment assets, capital expenditure and costs are based
on the geographical location of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER @

Primary reporting format — business FESHHME—FEBHE
segments

Revenue g
External sales bz HE
Inter-segment sales ABHZHEE
Results EE
Segment results before REBERRERS
impairment loss and! RREMEATE
changes in fair value of B HBEE
investment securities and
investment properties
Unrealised fair value gain on REBSIKER
investment securities Ak
Increase in fair value of REME 2 NTEEM
investment properties

Impairment losses of fimrights ~~ EFMRIEZ HEKE

Segment results AREE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1 &M B2 2 Wik
Fair value loss in issuance of BIT3E LI AREE 2

unlisted warrants ATEEE
Finance income g1 UN
Share of loss of ajoint venture~~ E1SA 2R EE R
Loss before income tax REGHAEE
Income tax expense MEHER

Loss attributable to the equity ARRREHAA

holders of the Company EfREE
Assets EE
Segment assets AHEE
Unallocated assets ROBEE
Total assets fBEE
Liabilties afE
Segment liabilties AHEE
Unallocated iabilties ROREE
Total liabilties f#efE

140  universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER @

Primary reporting format — business FESHHME—FEBHE
segments (Continued) (%)

Other information At AR
Capital expenditures ERRY
Unallocated capital expenditures KPR AARIX

Total capital expenditures BELRX

Depreciation and amortisation of ~ FE itz HER
leasehold land i3

Unallocated depreciation and RELHZAAE
amortisation of leasehold land REREH

Total depreciation and RELHZBRER
amortisation of leasehold land B

Amortisation of fim rights BYMEZEH

“E-NFEFR RFERRERERAR
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=y . RV I3Y
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) TERE # (w0
: : : - EE A\ S E Ay ~\ v
Primary reporting format — business FEHHFRE—FBOH
segments (Continued) (#5&)
2013
—3-=%
Film
exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Sale of  sub-licensing investment Securities Money
goods  of film rights properties  Investments lending Others Elimination Group
YR
Rit RE#
HEER EVME LRRENE EHRE HE Aty HH F5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue ey
External sales iz e 6,426 62,170 920 - - 9,590 - 79,106
Inter-segment sales AHBEZHE - 2,711 - - - 45 (2,816) -
6,426 64,941 920 - - 9,635 (2,816) 79,106
Results ES
Segment results before HEBERRENE
impairment losses and ATEEBE
change in fair value of PBEE
investment properties (4,016) 247 458 - - (990) - (2,131)
Increase in fair value of REME L ATEEM
investment properties - - 4,228 - - - - 4,228
Impairment losses of fimrights ~~ EFKRiE 2 HERK - (7,381) - - - = = (7,381)
Segment results PEEE (4,016) (4,964) 4,686 - - (990) - (5,084)
Finance income BERA 397
Finance cost BERAR (1,000)
Share of profit of EEAERAZFE
a jointly venture 1,087
Loss before income tax REGHAEE (4,890)
Income tax credit G e 213
Loss attributable to the equity ARRERRAA
holders of the Company EfREE (4677)
Assets EE
Segment assets PHEE 11,215 94,564 49,910 - - 17,918 - 173,607
Unallocated assets AOREE 222,850
Total assets BEE 396,457
Liabilties R
Segment liabltes SBEE 1,984 131,873 3% - - 6,460 - 140,652
Unallocated iabilties KAREE 14,652
Total liabilities BafE 155,304



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 HEMER @
Primary reporting format — business FEHHFRE—FBOH
segments (Continued) &)
2013
“E-=f
Film
exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Sale of  sub-licensing investment Securities Money
goods  of film rights properties  Investments lending Others Group
B0
BHREE ‘
HEEm EYMRE MEREME BHRE & ) r%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AETT BETT BETT AT BETT
Other information HiER
Capital expenditures BARREY 2,382 427 25,422 = = 34 28,265
Unallocated capital expenditures K ELAAREI % 92,071
Total capital expenditures BETRX 120,336
Depreciation and amortisation of A&+t & L&
leasehold land 240 78 - - - 43 361
Unallocated depreciation and REL 2 RAENE
amortisation of leasehold land R 641
Total depreciation and RET o BNEREH
amortisation of leasehold land 1,002
Amortisation of fim rights BYMEZ & 2,981 33,186 - - - S 36,167
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 HEER @

Secondary reporting format — geographical 1B 7 B & — Hh 5 5 EB
segments
2014
—E-mE
Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditures
W & BEE BARX
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BT T
Hong Kong and Macau BE KR 62,585 359,991 24,563
Asia (other than Hong Kong M (B ORI M)
and Macau) 141,704 34,712 -
North America JEEM 256 3 =
Australia and New Zealand SN R 18 - -
Europe BOM 478 35 -
Others A, 170 23 -
205,211 394,764 24,563
2013
—T-=F
Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditures
Wz BEE BARX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT T AT
Hong Kong and Macau BE R 38,188 357,078 120,336
Asia (other than Hong Kong M (B RORPIBR M)
and Macau) 40,283 39,317 -
North America JEEM 328 3 =
Europe BUM 297 35 =
Others Hitb 10 24 =
79,106 396,457 120,336
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

LEASEHOLD LAND 6 HELit
2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group AEE BT T BRI
Cost Bk 7R
At the beginning of the year F4 3,605 3,605
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR (3,605) =
At the end of the year FR - 3,605
Accumulated amortisation REHEEEE
At the beginning of the year F 492 410
Amortisation for the year FEEH 34 82
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B A A (526) -
At the end of the year FR - 492
Net book value BREDFE
At the end of the year FR - 3,113
At the beginning of the year F4 3,113 3,195
The Group’s interest in leasehold land represents prepaid AEBRESETHHERBENEEME
operating lease payments and their net book values are ExE HEEFESTOT :

analysed as follows:

2014 2013
—F—mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Held outside Hong Kong on: EBBAINTE
Leases of between 10E50F B E
10 to 50 years - g,118
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

7 ME -HBERRE

EQUIPMENT
Group F£R
Cost A

At 1st July 2013 RZE-=§tA-H
Addtions RE

Disposals (Note 39) 1 (F5E39)

Disposal of subsidiaries ~ (HEMBA)

At 30th June 2014 RZE-MEXA=TH
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z5t#7E

At 1st July 2013 RZE-=§tf-A
Depreciation charge FEER

Disposals (Note 39) & (Fi339)

Disposal of subsidiaries ~ (HEMBA)

At 30th June 2014 RZE-MEAA=TH
Net book value FAFE

At 30th June 2014 RZZ-BERA=1A
At 1st July 2013 RZE-=§tA-H

As at 30th June 2014, net book value of machinery and
equipment held by the Group under finance leases is
approximately HK$69,000 (2013: HK$3,700).

R-_TB—WEXA=Z+H AEERE
MEMER I REREHEZREFE
) R/ ABEE000T (ZE—=F B
3,7007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 7 ME -BEBREE @
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Land and Leasehold Machinery Furniture Motor Office
Buildings  improvements  and equipment and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
HHRET HENEEE  KERZE  KARRE RE BRERB a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group T5E BETT BETT BETT BRI T AR BETT BETT
Cost KR
At 1st July 2012 W=Z3--%+F-A 19,525 6,550 26,003 1,552 1,475 7,711 62,816
Additions NE - 715 3 50 - 86 854
Disposals (Note 39) e (FizH30) - - (87) 8 - (276) (321)
Revaluation upon ERERENEZER
transfer to investment (Mz£23())
properties (Note 23(a)) 10,980 - - - - - 10,980
Transfer to investment ~ EEZERENE
properties (13,994) - - - - - (13,994)
At 30th June 2013 RZE-=47~A=1H 16,511 7,265 25,969 1,504 1,475 7,521 60,335
Accumugted depreciion ZEFE
At 1st July 2012 W-E-—#+A—H 4,583 6,422 25921 1,499 803 7,012 46,246
Depreciation charge HEER 419 82 31 15 139 234 920
Disposals (Note 39) HE (H1339) - - (37 1) - (276) (314)
Transfer to investment ~ EEZRENE
properties (1,194) - - - - - (1,194)
At 30th June 2013 R=Z-=%~A=1H 3,808 6,504 25,921 1513 942 6,970 45,658
Net book value REFE
At 30th June 2013 RZE-=§7~A=1H 12,708 761 48 81 533 551 14,677
At 1st July 2012 W=Z--%+F-A 14,942 128 76 53 672 699 16,570
The carrying amount of land and buildings of the Group is AEBZ T REFEREERBEINAT :
analyzed as follows:
2014 2013
—E—ME —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Held in Hong Kong on: EEEREE:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10250F i & - 10,568
Held outside Hong Kong on: RBEBAINDEIFE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E50F B HE - 2,135

—T-mEEHR BFERERERAT 147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ﬁrﬁ

8

e BRKRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

8 REWE

2014 2013
—F-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Group AEE BT T BRI
At fair value BATE
At the beginning of the year F9) 49,896 9,100
Additions B - 25,422
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (27,180) =
Transfer from land and buildings A REFEE (7))
(Note 7) - 12,800
Transfer to non-current assets held HEBEERERE 2
for sale FEMBEE - (1,654)
Change in fair value NEEES 2,344 4,228
At the end of the year FR 25,060 49,896

The carrying amount of investment properties of the Group
is analysed as follows:

AEBEZEREMEFREEITAT

2014 2013
—F-mE —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Held in Hong Kong: TEERE:
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 10Z2505 ity HAFA & 25,060 49,896

All investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2014
by an independent, professionally qualified valuer, Roma
Appraisals Limited, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors engaged by the Group.

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for its
investment properties at least annually. In the current
year, the valuations are performed by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuers.
At the end of each reporting period, the directors update
their assessment of the fair value of each property, taking
into account the most recent independent valuations. The
directors determine a property’s value within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar investment properties. Where
such information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature or recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows; or

(i) capitalised income projections based upon a
property’s estimated net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of market
evidence.

The valuation gain is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

A MR

8 BKEWE @

RNFEZ RERE ﬁ?éﬂ%xﬁ%%ﬁ’\/é
BmiH L2 RITER - WMARERSERH
ﬁﬂ*ﬂﬂ%%?%%?ﬁ%yﬂéfﬂ)(ﬁ
ZER B

M

TRMEZMERNERM S LB
TERSIBUNERBRIGRZT
B EZEMER Y RRRZEE
EMELFEE:

REERIIRE IR < P SE Rt #ETT 2
MERTREFAR: K

R E 2 EFHFT IS RAETZ
B ATER RIS RED T
BHZEREL R

HERERES 2ERERAER -

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R IR

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

8 BKEWE @

Fair value measurement
at 30th June 2014 using
RIE-—MEAA=Z+HEHR

Fair value hierarchy AEEER A THMANBRETZATESNE
Quoted
prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
HEEEZ HinE KX EXTA
5 BT 15 AR BER
WmE DN 6:4 N 6
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(%1/E) (52fE) (%3/8)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Description i BT T BT T BT
Recurring fair value BEEAFEFE
measurements
Investment properties BEYE - - 25,060
There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during FN F1E FERFIEBzHIT EE
the year. B o

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been
derived using the sales comparison approach assuming
sale of the property interests in their existing states with the
benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant

market.

There was no change in valuation techniques during the

year.

REME 2 EIBATENFRAHELE

AEH ERRERYEEEIAERR

ERALE UKL EREHHARL
AELLBHER S

FAEERELEZS-

i/\

2

9 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS HthEmEEE
Club membership
g 3
2014 2013
—F-mE —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group AEE BT T BET T
At the beginning and end of the year ~ F# R FE xR 1,858 1,858
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10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN

10 EXMERREPZIER

PROGRESS
Films in
Film rights progress Total
EAT BERZER B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Group r&EHE BT BB BT
Cost AR
At 1st July 2013 RZZE—=F+tA—H 780,398 110,169 890,567
Additions NE 13,137 11,172 24,309
Transfers B 111,525 (111,525) -
Write-off of DVD YR S AR RIER
preproduction cost PR 2 1 85 (623) - (623)
Write-off of expired film rights ZIERE SRR 2 W sH (10,979) - (10,979)
At 30th June 2014 R-ZZ-MFEXA=+H 893,458 9,816 903,274
Accumulated amortisation and AT RRE
impairment
At 1st July 2013 R-E—=FtH—H 719,299 - 719,299
Amortisation for the year FREHE (f7F28)
(Note 28) 162,345 - 162,345
Impairment losses HEES 1,211 - 1,211
Write-off of DVD preproduction YIS B NI EERT

cost AR 2 # 85 (623) - (623)

Write-off of expired film rights B EE A 2 W (10,979) - (10,979)

At 30th June 2014 R-Z—NESA=1+H 871,253 - 871,253
Net book value REFE

At 30th June 2014 RZZE—NESA=1H 22,205 9,816 32,021

At 1st July 2013 R-ZE—=%t+A—H 61,099 110,169 171,268
Amortisation of approximately HK$162,345,000 (2013: 5 S RE B %162,345,0000T (=&

— =4 B #36,167,0007T) it AZ A &
EUR SR 2 W ES A A o

HK$36,167,000) is included in the cost of revenue in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN 10 EXREREIEFZER
PROGRESS (continued) (&)
Films in

Film rights progress Total

BYME BEPIEY B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Group REE BT T BET T BT

Cost B AR

At 1st July 2012 NZE——F+H—H 716,417 92,128 808,545

Additions NE 2,551 91,509 94,060

Transfers LB 73,468 (73,468) =

Write-off of expired film rights S BT AR 2 i 8E (12,038) = (12,038)

At 30th June 2013 RZZE—=FA=+H 780,398 110,169 890,567

Accumulated amortisation and RETE#ERRE

impairment
At 1st July 2012 RZZE——F+HF—H 687,789 - 687,789
Amortisation for the year FEEH (M3:E28)

(Note 28) 36,167 - 36,167
Impairment losses REBE 7,381 - 7,381
Write-off of expired film rights B EAE S AR 2 U 5H (12,038) = (12,038)
At 30th June 2013 RZE—=FA=+H 719,299 - 719,299

Net book value REFE
At 30th June 2013 RZZE—=%-A=+H 61,099 110,169 171,268
At 1st July 2012 R-ZZE——%+HF—H 28,628 92,128 120,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11 WIBARKE
Company
LN
2014 2013
—E—ME —ET—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD - R AE 72,096 72,096
The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 30th June UWTAR-ZZE—NFAA=+tHZHE
2014. AR
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
E A A 3L 3 B
a8 Rt EERER BRTRAHE FAARBRAES I TERBREFNE
Direct Indirect
B %
*Universe Films (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 100 - Investment holding in
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
SERTHES EBRKRA100ET 100 - REBR BE
BREEAT
Universe Laser & Video Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1,000,000 = 100 Distribution of films in various
Co. Limited liability company videogram formats in
Hong Kong
BRI ST ERAA B BRELDH ERRRA - 100 MPREKHAETER FF
7%1,000,0007T
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Sub-licensing of fim rights and film
Company Limited liability company exhibition in Hong Kong
BFERETERAA B BREEDA LERRABET - 100 ERBZIRERZTTZHG FE
*Unique Model Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 - 100 Model agency in Hong Kong
liability company
B BREERT LRRRABEI00T - 100 BRERRE FE
Universe Digital Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100 Distribution of films in various
Entertainment Limited liability company 5% deferred videogram formats in Hong
HK$10,000 Kong
BFYBREGRAF B BREERT EERRAEE10,0007 - 100 MFPRSKHABTEY FF
596IESE R AR A
7#%10,0007T
Universe Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100 Provision of management services
Services Limited liability company 5% deferred for the Group in Hong Kong
HK$10,000
EFAEERERAT B BREERH EERRAEE10,0007 - 100 RAKEREERRE B4
59 R AR A
7#%10,0007T

*

No registered Chinese names for the companies
FZERAGEEMD AR

*

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ ZI- i& #&%‘% IZTT A-I

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11 BARKXE @)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
L1 B S 3t B
4B Lz e ERER BRITRAHE KAARBRAES I TEEBREENY
Direct Indirect
E# R
Universe Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$2 - 100 Investment in films production and
Limited limited liability licensing of film rights in Hong
company Kong
EFREER LA RERTES BRRRA2ET - 100 RESFHRERKHEZRE
BREMLAF Bk
*Universe Pictures The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$2 - 100 Film acquisition agent for the
International Limited limited liability Group in Hong Kong
company
RRRAHES LERRA2ET - 100 AREZZRRERE &3
BREEAT
Universe (China) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment holding in Hong Kong
Development Limited liability company and investment in television
series production in the
People’s Republic of China
(‘PRC")
RF(HE)ARERAR  BF BREEAA ERRRAEET - 100 REER BERRERESR
EER PEARANE
(@)
“Globalink Advertising Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Advertising agent for the Group in
Limited liability company Hong Kong
BE BREMATA LRRRAER2T - 100 AEEZEERE FE
Century Creator Company Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment in films production in
Limited liability company Hong Kong
i EIfEE AR AR BE BREMATA LRRRAEST - 100 REBFEUE BE
Matrix Productions Company  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment in films production in
Limited liability company Hong Kong
HEAEERAA B BREERR ERRRABET - 100 RESYEE FE
Digital Programme Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Production of infotainment
Production Limited liability company programme in Hong Kong
HISE B RERRAR B BRELENA LERRABET - 100 BUEREENGHE FF
Universe International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Purchasing agent for the Group in
Technology Limited liability company Hong Kong
ETARMRERAR BE BREMAA LRRRAERT - 100  AEEZRERE FE
Universe Artiste Management  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 = 100 Management of contracted artistes
Limited liability company in Hong Kong
RTEANERERLA B BREERA ERRRABEI0T - 100 EEANEA FE

No registered Chinese names for the companies
' eGSRl e
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11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11 BARKXE @)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
L1 B S 3t B
4B Lz e ERER BRITRAHE KAARBRAES I TEEBREENY
Direct Indirect
B R
*Films Station Production Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Films production in Hong Kong
Limited liability company
B BREENA LERRABET - 100 EYEEBE
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Licensing and sub-licensing of
liability company musiC programme in
Hong Kong
RFELERLA B BREERA ERRRAEET - 100 RHREXRSLHAME 55
Universe Information & Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Inactive
Entertainment Limited liability company
RFERERERAE B BRELELNA LERRABET - 100 EELX
Universe Industrial Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Inactive
Development Limited liability company
BFIEERERAA B BRELDH LERRABET - 100 EEZE%
Universe Intellectual Property  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Inactive
Limited liability company
RFHHEEERAA B BREERA ERRRAEET - 100 EEZZ
“Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Sub-licensing of film rights
Limited liability company in Hong Kong
B BREELA LERRABET - 100 BREIIRE BF
Mutual Faith Investment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 = 100 Property development in
Limited liability company Hong Kong
EEREERATF B BREELA LRRBRAEE1007T - 100 DEER FA
Elite Master Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1,000 - 100 Inactive
liability company
ECE L YN BE BREMATA LERRABE,000 - 100 EEZE%
Weluck Development Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$1 - 100 Securities investments
limited liability
company
KEERBRAA RERAHES EBRRAIET - 100 #EHRE
ERAALA
Grant Talent Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Films production in Hong Kong
liability company
AEERAR B BREELA LRRRABEIT - 100 BYHEFE

No registered Chinese names for the companies
* eGSRl e

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R IR

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11 MBARKRE @

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
L1 B S 3t B
4B Lz e ERER BRITRAHE KAARBRAES I TEEBREENY
Direct Indirect
B R
Group Mega International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Inactive
Limited liability company
BEPEBRERAR B BREENA LRRRABEIT - 100 EELX
Ever Rainbow Corporation Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Inactive
Limited liability company
ELIRE) YN BE BRAMATA EBRRABEIT - 100 EEZE%
Fragrant River Entertainment  The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 100 - Investment holding in
Culture (Holdings) Limited limited liability Hong Kong and
i \ . company i B \the British }/irgiq}slamds
BLREXL (BK) EERUES EERRA100%ET 100 - RABR BEREBRLES
BR AR ERAALA
Fragrant River Finance Group ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 - 100 Investment holding in
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
BINBEEERAF SRRTES LREBRKAI100ET - 100 REER FF
BREEAT
Fragrant River Asia The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 - 100 Investment holding in
Investment Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
BIENREERDA RERTES EERRA100%ET - 100 REERKR BE
ERAALA
Urban King Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 - 100 Investment holding in
limited liability Hong Kong
company
BAERERLR SRRTES LREBRKA100ET - 100 REER FF
BREEAT
Precise Reach Group Limited  The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 - 100 Investment holding in
limited liability Hong Kong
company
BESEARAR RERTES EERRA100%ET - 100 REERKR BE
ERAALA
Valiant Power Holdings The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 - 100 Investment holding in
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
ERZERBRAT SRRTES LBEBRKAI100ET - 100 REER FF
BREEAT

No registered Chinese names for the companies
FEYNGRE S e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11 BARKXE @)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation
and kind of Particulars of Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity issued share capital held by the Company place of operation
L1 B S 3t B
4B Lz e ERER BRITRAHE KAARBRAES I TEEBREENY
Direct Indirect
E# R
Universe Asia Finance Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 - 100 Money lending in Hong Kong
Limited liability company )
EFONFBERAA B BREENA LERRABEI00T - 100 WE &F
Fragrant River Culture Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 - 100 Inactive
Investment Limited liability company
BIXLRBBR R BE BRAMATA EBRRABE100T - 100 EE2Z
Fragrant River Entertainment ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 = 100 Inactive
Investment Limited liability company
BIREREFRAA B BREERA EERRABEI00T - 100 EEZZ
Ample China Development Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 - 100 Inactive
Limited liability company
HEERBERAT BE AREEAA LRRBEAEE1007T - 100 EELX
Colourful International Culture  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 - 100 Inactive
Entertainment Investment liability company
Holdings Limited
SREBRLRERE B BREELA LERRABEI00T - 100 EELX
BERERAE
Excellent Motor Vehicles Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 = 100 Inactive
Investments Limited liability company
BHAEREERAF BE AREEAHA LRRBRAEE 1007 - 100 EELX
* No registered Chinese names for the companies

ZERALEEMP AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN RS E

12 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(@) Investment in a joint venture

On 15th April 2013, Digital Programme Production
Limited (“DPP”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with
three independent parties to form a joint venture, Sun
Billion Property Limited (“SBPL”).

BENRAIZER

REERBIZIKE
RZE—=FMWA+HH AQF
—ERAEE2ENB ARSNGB &
EERAR ([RGB | )E=2
B ATRI — sk —RE
ENRIREXBRAR ([[HRE
EJDIC

Group
AE
2014 2013
—E—mE —ET—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Investment in a joint venture REERAZRE
At the beginning of the year F9) 1,145 -
Acquisition of a joint venture BERNAZWEE - 58
Share of (loss)/profit of a joint venture fEIE A E R T2
(&18),FHE (221) 1,087
At the end of the year FR 924 1,145

As at 30th June 2014, particulars of the joint venture
are as follows:

R-B-—MENA=+A A%D
Al ZFIBMT

Percentage of

interest in
ownership/
voting power/
Place of Nominal value of profit sharing held
Name incorporation registered capital by the Group Principal activity
FEEBAZ
BEEES
RER/
A & R B 3L 1 B AMEAZERE EaFBEZEN L FTEXH
Sun Billion Property Limited ~ Macau Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) 40% Note
MOP150,000
GREXERAA RF RPTE ([RE]) 40% it
JR150,0007T

Note: The principal activity of SBPL is the operation of the
investment of land and property in Macau.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

12 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 12 REERFRIZEELE @
(Continued)
(@ Investment in a joint venture (Continued) (@ REERAIZEE (#)
The financial information of the joint venture is EENTINTBERHEOT :

extracted as follows:

2014 2013

—EF-mE —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Assets BE 22,297 22,138

Liabilities BfE (19,981) (19,275)

Net assets BEFE 2,316 2,863

Revenue Wz - 2,971

Expenses ZH (552) (74)

(Loss)/profit for the year FA(E18) FHE (552) 2,897
There were no contingent liabilities relating to the RZZE—WMFAA=TH $iEs
Group’s investment in the joint venture and no AEEREE QAR ZIRERBZ K
significant contingent liabilities of the joint venture as REBE BEZEERAFBIGHESE

at 30th June 2014. RERBE-

—T-mEEH BETERERERAT 159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRKRME

12 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

(b) Loan receivable from a joint venture

In addition, DPP agreed to provide SBPL an
unsecured interest-free loan of HK$8,800,000 which
is denominated in HK dollar and repayable in 5 years.
The loan of HK$7,922,000 (2013: HK$7,710,000) is
recognized as ‘Loan receivable from a joint venture’ in
the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2014
and is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

12 REE NI ZER (@)

b) EWEERRERK

AN BRES &R E Iﬂﬁﬁyﬁ%&E%%
H—EBETECERFREEE
X4 %8,800,0007T I B REE A
818 - 5 #7,922,0007T W E K (—
T — = F B #7,710,00070) R =
E-MFENA=THNGEEESR
BEERPZIERELERRERIA
BREFEAEBRNEESERAIE

s

Group
AE
2014 2013
—E-lE —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loan receivable from Bl &EARER
a joint venture
At the beginning of the year F1) 7,710 -
Shareholder’s loan to BENRZBREER
a joint venture - 8,800
Discounted interests expenses RAFEHFRFEER
for 5 years - (1,116)
Accretion income for the period  HiR 2 2FE WA 212 26
At the end of the year FR 7,922 7,710

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

13 AEERF AR -&MIA

BY CATEGORY - GROUP AND o3
COMPANY
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been EReRmIANGTRRERAN THIE
applied to the line items below: H:
Group
&
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Assets as per consolidated GREEEEBRZEE
balance sheet
Available-for-sale A E
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENSREE
(Note 14) (FfF5E14) 54,965 -
Asset at fair value through EREBEREAFEARS
profit or loss BE
Financial assets at fair value through BRBmZAFEARD
profit or loss (Note 19) SREE (MFE19) 60,315 -
Loans and receivables B3 % EBGRIAR
Accounts receivable (Note 17) FEYERZN (BFE17) 25,466 24,758
Deposits paid and other receivables BATE] & R E fh U SR IE 16,453 24,331
Loans receivable (Note 18) FEWE R (HI5E18) 38,930 -
Cash and cash equivalents BehkBeEEY
(Note 20) (Hf5E20) 84,178 50,430
Liabilities as per consolidated CEEEEBRZAR
balance sheet
Other financial liabilities at RBEKAzZHEhERmEE
amortised cost
Accounts payable (Note 26) FETBR R (I 7E26) 4,193 4,164
Other payables and accrued charges B FRIE M EET S 51,289 15,981
Deposits received BEET & 32,446 133,825
Obligations under finance lease Bl & M SR 69 4
Amount due to the ultimate holding FET S AR A R SRR
company (Note 27) (Mt5E27) 1 1

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN R E

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 13 KEBERAQAR-&MIE
BY CATEGORY - GROUP AND 75 ()
COMPANY (Continued)
Company
b /N
2014 2013
—E—ME —ET—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Assets as per balance sheet EEBBERZEE
Loans and receivables B3 e WGRIE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B BB R B3R IB
(Note 27) (Hf5E27) 158,075 154,955
Cash and cash equivalents RehkIReEEBY
(Note 20) (MFE20) 1,266 80
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEABERZER
Other financial liabilities R A2
at amortised cost HEthEmasE
Accrued charges EET X 1,985 1,491
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTB B A R FIE
(Note 27) (FfE27) 4,894 29

14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 14 AIEHENEMEE

ASSETS
Group
rE
2014 2013
—EF-mE —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the year F4 3,005 3,005
Additions nE 55,309 -
Disposals k= (309) =
Change in value recognised in other O EL 2 T UK A R R AR
comprehensive income BEZSH (35) -
Provision for impairment of AP ENESREE .
available-for-sale financial assets B (3,005) (3,005)
At the end of the year FR 54,965 =
Unlisted investment ELETIRE
Equity securities w5 54,965 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RRNEE

14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 14 AIHHENEMEE (@)

ASSETS (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

In view of the adverse trend of financial health and
business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance as well as operational
and financing cash flow, various operating metrics fell
short of management’s previous expectation, therefore,
management determined the investment in available-for-
sale financial assets is impaired.

Movements on the provision for impairment of available-for-
sale financial assets are as follows:—

AHfEENSREENERIIE

ERPRERREM BB EEME
BRENTMEE BRITEMD IR
BUREENMERSRESHE &
HE BRSO ARNEERE ZARM
AittERERENHHENSREER
BHIRERR -

AHfHENEREEZRERE 2
L

Group
&
2014 2013
—T-mEF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the year F4 3,005 3,005
Provision for impairment of AEENEREE .
available-for-sale financial assets VERIERE L] - -
At the end of the year FR 3,005 3,005

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRKRME

15 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS 156 S8 X£FH#ER
The Group has entered into certain joint operation REBBFI Y —EEEEBLHNUD A
arrangements to produce and distribute four television SUERZBETINHMEREER (2 —=
series (2013: four) and seven films (2013: five) respectively. F:g %B))SH:*B?E% (Z2—=%F:1
The Group has participating interests ranging from 29% ) c REBEN M ES S EFEE R29%
to 82% in these joint operations. As at 30th June 2014, B8R 2 EERZ - R T —MNF XA
the aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities recognized —tH BFRAASERLEEGEERT
in the consolidated financial statements relating to the etmp BEREE T BHRER P ER
Group’s interests in these joint operation arrangements are JEERBERLENAT:
as follows:
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=%
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Assets BE
Television series rights and B EE B hRAE &
television series in progress BErh 2 B EEE 8,424 49,311
Film rights and films in progress BRI E R AR Z?'-E%? 17,701 113,257
Accounts receivable and A M5 AR 50 B EL A JE W R IE
other receivables 20,156 24,906
46,281 187,474
Liabilities BE
Accounts payable and JE S BR 35 % HL th JE < 5RIR
other payables 438 697
Deposits received BEWET & 13,047 124,516
13,485 125,213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

15 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS 15 &% X # &= (4

(Continued)
Group
A&
2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue U =5 166,853 34,720
Expenses 93 (164,626) (33,627)
Profit after income tax B PS5 12 N 2,227 1,093
16 INVENTORIES 16 &
Group
A&
2014 2013
—FE—mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Raw materials R 2,138 2,107
Finished goods BIRY ah 1,532 1,675
3,670 3,782
Less: Provision for impairment of B TFE 2 RERE
inventories (702) (498)
2,968 3,284
The cost of inventories recognized as expenses and FERARER BRI A WK
included in ‘cost of revenue’ amounted to approximately N Hy & BE AT 4978 #3,248,0007T (=
HK$3,248,000 (2013: HK$2,734,000). T — =4 : JB#2,734,0007T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RKRME

16 INVENTORIES (Continued)

Movements on the provision for impairment of inventories
are as follows:

16 & (&)

FEZRERBZZSHMT :

Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the year F7) 498 1,061
Provision/(write-back of provision) for 17 & #s /(B4 2 E#)
inventories 204 (8)
Provision for inventories written off FAMIETTERE
during the year - (555)
At the end of the year FR 702 498

The Group had no written back of provision (2013:
HK$8,000) made in previous years after the relevant
inventories were sold during the year ended 30th June
2014. The amount written back has been included in ‘other
operating income/(expenses)’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The Group had written off
inventories of HK$20,000 during the year ended 30th June
2014 (2013: HK$2,000) and has been included in ‘other
operating income/(expense)’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

17 FEUTERFX

Group
rE
2014 2013
—F—MmE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Accounts receivable JE UK BR 3k 25,608 24,900
Less: Provision for impairment of B FEUBR IR R E B
accounts receivable (142) (142)
Accounts receivable — net JEULBR R — F &8 25,466 24,758

The carrying amount of the Group’s accounts receivable

AREE 2 RWRRZREEA NG

was denominated in the following currencies: R
2014 2013
—E—ME —F—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
- HK$ — B 2,916 15,108
- Us$ —X7T 138 317
- RMB —AR¥ 22,408 9,333
- EURO — BT 4 _
25,466 24,758

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximates FEW AR 2 BREESEE A TFERE

to their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet
date is the carrying value of accounts receivable disclosed

above.

bt AR R AR ED(E

“EEFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ ZI- ﬁ& #&%‘% Izﬁ. A-I

17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 17 BYER (&

MNoB—NER-T—=FA=18"
JEURBR R IRBE E H B BRER D AT A0 T

As at 30th June 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of the
accounts receivable by invoice date as follows:

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—F—mE —T—=%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
1 to 90 days 1290H 2,114 10,175
91 days to 180 days 91H &2180H 16,041 4,761
Over 180 days 180H LA 7,311 9,822
25,466 24,758

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7 days
to 60 days. Sales from fim exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights are on open account terms.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable, as the Group has a large number of
customers, and are internationally dispersed.

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

HESKBEMRZEEHRHE7TAE60AT

F-BEHBR KA REREZRELZH
EXFENCRTEAET-

MRS Y EEFOEERR

AR/

SERBERZEF BRMERSH-

FEM R 2 BERE 2 ZEHm T

Group
&
2014 2013
—E-MEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT
At the beginning of the year F7) 142 142
Provision for impairment of FEUWBR 2 R B B
accounts receivable - —
At the end of the year FR 142 142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

No provision was recognized by the Group for the
impairment of its accounts receivable during the year ended
30th June 2014 (2013: Nil). During the year ended 30th
June 2014, no provision (2013: Nil) was written off from the
allowance account.

As at 30th June 2014, the Group does not hold any
collateral as security. As at 30th June 2013, a bank
guarantee of HK$60,000 was provided to the Group by a
customer.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

RE M RRNEE

17 FEUWER X (@)

(E_T-MFEANA=THILEFER K
SEYERAERBERRNBERE (=F
—ZHEE) BHE_T-MOFEAA=T
RIEFEER XEBERNENERES M
H(ZE—=F:E)-

R-E-—NFERNA=1+H ~AEEL &
FEENERREER-R_T—=%F
NA=1THB —REFPRASEREHE
#60,0007T HY SRITHELR ©

18 EIWE R

Group
A&
2014 2013
—EF-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Loans to customers BEEEXR

38,930 =

Analysed as: Ip=%
— Non-current —JERNER
— Current — B

38,930 =

38,930 =

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk.

RERE —EEARIE IR B ey U E TR -
BB EERBRRERKIE -

—E-mEFR BFERERERAT 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ ZI- i& #&%‘% IZTT A-I

18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18 B E K (&
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as EWEFHNEELEEZSMWT
follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired I 7K 280 HA R B
— Unsecured loans — R E N 29,930 =
— Secured loans —EEFER 9,000 =
38,930 —
The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money AEBZEREZR (ARBEBHMEZE
lending business in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong TEMmES) TILABEEHE-
Kong dollars.
The loans receivable are neither impaired nor overdue as at RZE—NEXA=1+H EREZRIL
30th June 2014, AR AE S
All the loans receivable are entered with contractual FIBZERKRERZEHNIBHBE R —F
maturity within 1 year. The Group seeks to maintain tight N REE)FERERHE T HERAR
control over its loans receivable in order to minimise credit Eﬁ*ﬂﬁ?ﬂ ”E?#%TFEHSZE%KE’\JEW%TQ%U :
risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’ financial =E2REEERR-
positions.
Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from JEU B FRIZ8.5/B E24[8 7 FFEK:T 8
8.5% to 24% per annum.
Interest income of HK$1,863,000 has been recognised in B A 1,863,000 E R EAE 2 E
‘revenue’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ek [ miER -

income.

170  universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

RE M RRNEE

19 EBBVHERLFENRZE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS A& E
Group
A&
30th Jun
~HA=+H
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Listed securities — held-for-trading ETEEF-BEEE
— Equity securities — HK —EmEHF BB 60,315 =
Market value of listed securities mESHzME 60,315 =

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within ‘operating activities’ as part of changes in
working capital in the consolidated statement of cash flows
(Note 39).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

EREEESBPN Mo BBRES
BRVFEARZEBEEINARARS
MEBRAZ [EEEH] (MEE39) -

ERRESN A FEDRIBEENEE
mIZHRITEAGBGE -

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\l-ﬁ

B BRKRMEE

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20 RERFEEEEY

Group Company
AEE Y. /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MmE —ET-=F —E-MmE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT
Cash at bank RITR4 60,809 11,980 1,266 80
Cash held with custodians TEBERERS 13,093 = - =
Cash in hand FERAE 270 254 - =
Term deposits with REMBA=EAK
original maturities of PR=M@EAZ
three months or less THER 10,006 38,196 = =
84,178 50,430 1,266 80
Maximum exposure to credit risk {5 & BB K F = &E 83,908 50,176 1,266 80
Denominated in: PAT B S 7I1E -
- HK$ —RK 83,874 50,168 1,266 80
- Thai Baht — ik 32 20 - -
-US$ —%7T 104 137 - =
-RVB - ARE 117 97 - =
- Other currencies —-HuE% 51 8 - =
84,178 50,430 1,266 80
The effective annual interest rate on term deposits with REBBEA=RBMAxPR=EA 2 EH

original maturities of three months or less is ranged from
0.25% to 1.15% (2013: ranged from 0.65% to 1.69%);
these deposits have an average original maturities of 21

days (2013: 30 days).

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC Government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 BE K
Number of Issued and
ordinary shares fully paid
21T
LEREE REBHE
HK$’000
B IT
At 1st July 2013 and 2012 RZZE—=FK
—ET——F+A—H 1,711,770,370 34,235
Issue and allotment of new shares ERBEAANRR_ZEZT=F
pursuant to the exercise of the +—AZ+NBHEMD
options granted under the share B AR 5T 814X O BB AR
option scheme of the Company BETTHR M 31T R AL D
adopted on 26 November 2003 (HE&E)
(Note) 17,117,700 343
At 30th June 2014 MZZE-—MFERA=TH 1,728,888,070 34,578

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 5,000
million shares (2013: 5,000 million shares) with a par value
of HK$0.02 per share (2013: HK$0.02 per share). All issued
shares are fully paid.

Note: Options exercised under share option scheme during the
year resulted in 17,117,700 shares being issued (2013: Nil),
with exercise proceeds of approximately HK$1,147,000
(2013: Nil). The price at the time of exercise was HK$0.067.

I F AR /9% E 81 B 4258 85,000,000,000
i (== — =4 : 5,000,000,000/% )
REEABBT (ZE—=F &k
EEA0.027T) - FIBEEEITRNAE
ZHHRE-

Biat: RAFE - F B EE 2 H T A58 R
BTG E7T17,117, 700117 ( = F
— = F) {TEARIBL BB
1,147,000 (= E— =4 : F) o 77(F
B (B 15 A8 #0.0677T °

T EFR RFERERARAT
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22 SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 26th November 2003, the
Company conditionally approved and adopted a share
option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 29th November 2011 (the “2011
AGM”), the Company approved the refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit, which is 171,177,037, representing
10% of the total number of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of the 2011 AGM, under the Old
Scheme.

On 27th June 2012, the Company granted 34,235,403
share options to the certain Directors and employees of the
Company at the subscription price of HK$0.067 per share
option which were vested immediately and exercisable for a
three-year period between 27th June 2012 and 26th June
2015 (both dates inclusive). Each share option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN RS E

22 FERE

BER_ZEZE=F+—HAZ+/RAHET
ZREBFERE HimiBr —HTERE
B ARFRBEEEMEXIABRA
RlEZH AR RIE R R IR — IR
BT ([E5HE) -

BERZZ——F+—AZ+ABET
ZREHEFAS ([ZF——FRIAF
Ag) EdBr —BERRER XA
AR ERBEFTEIE T ERE LR
BB E171,177,03710 Bl 2 ——F %
RAFASER ARG ZEHETRGZ
H210% °

RZE——FNA-_t++tH AQA
NEHERESB0.067TZREER
134,235,403 AN BB R AR = F
——HFANAZt+tHBE_ZTE—HF A
Z+AB=FHE (BEEEMX) AT
FERETAARZETESMNES -
BHERERTHEARMNRERQF
2 —IREBR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RRNEE

22 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 22 f\lﬁﬂi HE (@)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding mARTTE B AR S B R E AR hiAE 5
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as THEEEFSHHT :
follows:
2014 2013
—Z-mE —T-=F%
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
in HK$ per Options in HKS$ per Options
share option (units) share option (units)
ShERE BiniEkE
EHTEE THIEE
(B¥T) BRE (1) (B%T) BIRE ()
At the beginning of the year 2] 0.067 34,235,403 0.067 34,235,403
Granted BEH - - - -
Forfeited BRI = = - -
Exercised BT 0.067 17,117,700 - -
Expired EEIE = = - -
At the end of the year £ S 0.067 17,117,703 0.067 34,285,403
17,117,700 share options have been exercised at the HE_ZT—NF~A=Z+BHLEFE"
exercise price of HK$0.067 per share during the year 17,117, 70017 BB AR B 2 R B AR B 150.067
ended 30th June 2014. The outstanding options of TTZITEEETFE MRZF—WFR
17,117,703 granted under the Old Scheme as at 30th June A=TBREBEEHEL 217,117,703
2014 were exercisable. MDEARITE 2 BRERTITE -

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o2 N =1

N R E

22 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted under the
Old Scheme at the measurement dated 27th June 2012
of HK$1,489,685 was determined under the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model and based on the following
assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 0.242%
Expected life of the share options 3 years
Expected volatility 116.31%

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model requires input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the risk-
free interest rate and the expected stock price volatility.
Because changes in the subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate, the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model does not necessarily provide a reliable
measure of the fair value of the share options.

In view of the expiration of the Old Scheme and in order
to enable the Company to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution
passed in the annual general meeting held on 2nd
December 2013 in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The New Scheme is valid for 10 years from the date of
its adoption which took place on 2nd December 2013.
Under the New Scheme, the total number of share
options available for issue as at 2nd December 2013 was
171,604,979, the full exercise of which in subscribing for
shares would represent 10% of the total number of the
issued shares of the Company as at 2nd December 2013.
None of the share options has been granted, exercised or
cancelled under the New Scheme for the period from 2nd
December 2013 (adoption date of the scheme) to 30th
June 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

23 SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER

23 Frfrim (B &% H fth

RESERVES
(@ Group (@ A&
Reserve Available- Share-based Unlisted
Share arising on for-sale  Revaluation compensation warrants
premium  consolidation investment reserve reserve reserve Total
&ekE Ftp FLET
B iEE kG FMHRUERE T MG AREIRE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEETT BETT BETT EETT BETT AR
At 1st July 2012 RZE-ZF
+A-H 135,293 821 - 938 1,490 - 138,542
Fair value adjustment upon transfer T3 R iEFEHE
from land and buldings to RENEZ
investment properties ATERE - - - 10,980 - = 10,980
At 30th June 2013 RZZ-Z%
~A=1A 135,293 821 - 11,918 1,490 - 149,522
At 1st July 2013 R-E-=F
tA-H 135,293 821 - 11,918 1,490 - 149,522
Exercise of share options TERRE 1,549 - - - (745) - 804
Issue of unlisted warrants BT EmRRER - - - - - 81,961 81,961
Transfer of revaluation reserve AL EHBARE
in investment properties to RENESHGHE
retained earnings upon ERERERF
disposal of subsidiaries - - - (11,918) - - (11,918)
Change in fair value of avallable- AT HE G REE L
for-sale financial assets ATEES - - (35) - - = (35)
At 30th June 2014 RZZ-IF
~A=1A 136,842 821 (35) - 745 81,961 220,334

—EEFR RFERERARAT
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n\l-ﬁ

B BRKRME

23 SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER 23 B imERH S @
RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Company (b) AR 7]
Share-based Unlisted
Share  Contributed compensation warrants
premium surplus reserve reserve Total
LT
Bt i E BHRSR ROBMEE DREIRE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 30th June 2013 and 2012 R=_ZE—=F
—E—CF
~AZ1H 135,293 51,852 1,490 - 188,635
At 1st July 2013 RZZ—=%FtA—H 135,293 51,852 1,490 - 188,635
Exercise of share options 17 BBk 1,549 - (745) - 804
Issue of unlisted warrants 47 3F | ARIEE - - - 81,961 81,961
At 30th June 2014 i1
~NA=TH 136,842 51,852 745 81,961 271,400

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange for the
issued shares of Universe Films (Holdings) Limited
and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired on 28th June 1999. Under the
Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributed to
the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or

(i)  the realizable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

At Group level, the contributed surplus is reclassified
into its components of reserves of the underlying
subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 24 BHEFHERE
LEASE
As at 30th June 2014, the Group’s obligations under R-ZE—MENA=1+H KEB &
finance lease are repayable as follows: BEHREREARINATFEAERE
Group
AEME
2014 2013
—E—ME —FT—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Within one year —F R 17 4
One to two years —FEMFER 17 =
Two to five years MEERFNRA 35 =

Future finance charges on obligations @& E#&IE 2 KK EE T H
under finance leases - -

Present value of obligations under BERERAEZRE
finance lease 69 4
The present value of obligations under finance lease is as BMEMEREZREBEMT
follows:
Group
KE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year —F R 17 4
One to two years —FEMFNR 17 =
Two to five years MEERFNR 35 =

—T-mEER BEFERERERAT 179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRKRME

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 25

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet are
determined after appropriate offset.

IR R R 15

ERREANTENBREVAEER
BEMBAERE BEEMSEHIR
Fl—M B AR SEEMEREE
HEETRRHE REAEERBERL
FIHZ @BKEENEHRMETE -

Group Company
KER /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—3-mE 2= —3-mE —E-=%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BRI BT
Deferred income tax assets: EEFMEHEAE:
- Deferred tax assets to be —fRE12(8 AR
recovered after more than REEREEE
12 months (203) (576) - (109)
- Deferred tax assets to be 7128 AR UK E &
recovered within 12 months EEHBEE (165) (165) - (82)
(368) (741) - (191)
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEHMERAE:
- Deferred tax liabilities to be —H#iB12ME A AUk e
recovered after more than FIEEREEE
12 months 96 188 - -
- Deferred tax liabilities to be —fE12(8 A AL A9
recovered within 12 months EEHBERE 4,646 58 - -
4,742 246 - =
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) EEHERE/
- net (BE)-F8 4,374 (495) - (191)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 25

The movements of the deferred income tax liabilities/
(assets) — net during the year are as follows:

RE M RRNEE

RTS8 (|

FRELEHREHEE (BE) —F8Z
ZEmT:

Group Company
x£E YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F —F-mE “T-=F%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
At the beginning of the year 2] (495) (282) (191) 2793)
Deferred income tax charged/ Ria2EREER
(credited) to consolidated mer/ (GtA) 2
statement of comprehensive EIEFER
income 248 (213) 191 82
Deferred income tax effect on REFBSRER
unrealised fair value gain on AVEREZ
investment securities BIEREHY2 4,621 = = =
At the end of the year FX 4,374 (495) - (191)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profit is probable. The
Group has unrecognized tax losses of HK$132,257,535
(2013: HK$113,814,676) to carry forward against future
taxable income. The tax losses have no expiry dates.

REMSTHEETARMEBB AR
FRRRER RN ER M TEE 2
MIBEEIEER - NEB A R ERIE
B BB #132,257,5357 0 (T — =4
7 #5113,814,6767T ) 7] 45 85 DA K 85 R 2Kk
FERTIUIA o L TR IE S48 I B EA A o

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ ZI- ﬁ& #&%‘% Izﬁ. A-I

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 25 IRIEFTIFH (@)

The movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities during FAEERBEERBE 8 (L&
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of EZRR—BHME AR EHE) AT :

balances within the same tax jurisdiction was as follows:

(@ Group (@ A&
2014
—F-mE
Accelerated tax
depreciation Others Total
MEB IR E Hith ot ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BHT T BET T
At the beginning of E10
the year 246 - 246
Credited to consolidated ~ R&rA 2 EWERA
statement of A
comprehensive income (125) - (125)
Deferred income tax effect 1% ﬁ BEHAREY
on unrealised fair value ~NEENEZ
gain on investment RIEFERTE
securities - 4,621 4,621
At the end of the year FR 121 4,621 4,742
2013
—T—=F
Accelerated tax
depreciation Others Total
MEBIBTE HAh BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BETT BT
At the beginning of F9)
the year 282 - 282
Credited to consolidated ~ R4RA ZEWRZEER A
statement of A
comprehensive income (36) - (36)
At the end of the year FR 246 - 246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(@) Group (Continued)

(@ AEEm)

25 RIS H (a)

Tax losses and total

BIEEEREHE
2014 2013
—E—ME —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At the beginning of the year =) (741) (564)
Charged/(credited) to Riza2EB SR AR,
consolidated statement of (5T A)
comprehensive income 373 (177)
At the end of the year FR (368) (741)
(b) Company (b) AR A
Tax losses and total
MEBERER
2014 2013
—_E—mE =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
At the beginning of the year F ) (191) (2793)
Charged to statement of R EE KX AR
comprehensive income 191 82
At the end of the year FR -

(191)

—EEFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

H
:éﬁ/'ﬁ A H

BF 355 SR AR B

26 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

27

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts payable
approximates to their fair values and are denominated in
the Hong Kong dollars.

26 FEfTERX

AEEzEANERREEEEQE
BEILIAEESIE-

As at 30th June 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of the RZE-—WOER=FT—=FH=TH"
accounts payable by invoice date is as follows: HEZEHH EMNERRRTET
Group
A&
2014 2013
—F—mE —T—=%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
1 to 90 days 1290H 1,521 1,511
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 469 167
Over 180 days 180H LA 2,203 2,486
4,193 4,164

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES AND THE ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries and the ultimate
holding company are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. All balances are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars and approximate to their fair values.
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28 HHEDEZER

JEWSEA AN BEERERER &2
BERBE HEER TREAREME

28 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of revenue, impairment
losses of film rights and film deposits, selling expenses,

administrative expenses and other operating expenses, are EEAANEBRSNAT:
analyzed as follows:
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Amortisation of film rights (Note 10) B RohAE 2 B (FIEE10) 162,345 36,167
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 6) #H & + i~ #6484 (Fft5£6) 34 82
Depreciation of owned assets (Note 7) BHEEEZTE (Mf:E7) 920 909
Depreciation of leased assets (Note 7) FEEEZITE (KzE7) 12 11
Impairment losses of film rights B REZREEE
(Note 10) (Kt7E10) 1,211 7,381
Provision/(write-back of provision) for ~ 1F& 7 B, (B @)
inventories (Note 16) (MsE16) 204 ©®)
Write-off of inventories FE 2 20 2
Write-off of film deposits BRI © Z MiH - 77
Write-back of provision for film deposit T 52 &] & # 15 2 [0 # (1,630) —
Employee benefits expenses including EERNEX (BEEEHE)
directors’ emoluments (Note 29) (MF5E29) 21,044 18,326
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAE 3,248 2,734
Advertising costs B &SRR 1,794 881
Direct operating expenses arising from EAE SR AWK EWER
investment properties that generate HEREEEMA
rental income 288 287
Auditor’s remuneration Z EA0 BN & 1,497 890

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN RS E

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS

On 1st December 2000, a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) was set up for employees,
including the executive directors. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group’s contributions are at 5% of employees’ relevant
income as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,500
per employee per month. The employees also contribute a
corresponding amount to the MPF scheme if their relevant
income is more than HK$7,100. The MPF contributions are
fully and immediately vested in the employees as accrued
benefits once they are paid.

20 EERAIK (BRAEEM

&)

R-ZBZEEFT_A—B ARAER
BE (BERTESR)IIZ—HRHMER
BEstE ([BEesTEll) REBES
e AKEZHFERERZARBK
A(EEREBARGIE LB TG
5% tHE BHREBEAZHALRAE
#1600 fHEE < ERARAT AEB
7B #7,1007T - AR R SR AR & 5t &1F 48
FE%ZEZL\TM =g R H1E - B
ERAEBRERZRFTREM-

Group
AE
2014 2013
—F—mE —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
Wages and salaries T & & % o 19,017 16,575
Provision for unutilized annual leaves KRB 18 2 B - 52
Write back of provision for RENFF B 2 B4 1o 43
unutilised annual leave (10) -
Provision for long service payments RHRE S 2 #HE 34 -
Write-back of provision for RAERAR T & 2 B i 1=l ¢
long service payments - 4)
Staff welfare B TEF
— Operating lease payments for —-BEBEEZ
directors’ quarters LIEHEMNK 994 960
- Others —Hfth 579 339
Pension costs — defined RR KA —FEH-RETE
contribution plan 430 404
21,044 18,326
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

RE M RRNEE

20 EERAIK (BRAEEM

&) ()

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s (@ EEXEREEABZH
emoluments ®
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended HE_Z—WNFA=1+THILTF
30th June 2014 is set out below: B -BEESHNHMOT
Salary,
housing Employer’s
allowances, contribution
and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind scheme Total
%2 REEHY R
Name of Directors ESlA g REWH G [ EX:3A am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BETT BETT
Chairman IE
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Danell MRS A - 6,104 15 6,119
Executive directors HITEE
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRIEEE - 1,855 15 1,870
Mr Hung Cho Sing (Note () AEEEE (FE) - 88 - 88
Mr Lam Kit Sun (Note (i) B 75 4 (P EEG)) - 688 15 703
Indlependient non-executive BUHHITEE

directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung (Note (i) REIR % 4 (K Fx (i) 66 - - 66
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert RREEL (FeEy)

(Note (iv)) 66 - - 66
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace SR AE (HEy)

(Note (iv)) 66 - - 66
Mr Lam Wing Tai (Note (v) Mok ZREE (HFY) 81 - - 81
Mr Lam Chi Keung (Note (vi)  #FZ 38 %4 (FizE(vi) 64 - - 64
Mr Choi Wing Koon (Note (vi)  Z k@54 (FizEwv)) 64 - - 64
Note ():  Mr Hung Cho Sing was appointed as an BisE() : HHEELEERZT—=F+

executive director of the Company on 16th A+ BEZEAEERRRH
October 2013. TES-
Note (i):  Mr Lam Kit Sun was appointed as an executive BEEEG) : MEFEERZZT—=FN
director of the Company on 30th August 2013. A=+BEZEAEERRAH
TES-
Note (ii): Mr Ng Kwok Tung retired as an independent BizEGi): MBEREERZZT—=F

non-executive directors of the Company on 2nd
December 2013.

+—A-BREARREL
FEMITEE -

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN RS E

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments (Continued)

Note (iv):  Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr Ma Chun Fung,
Horace resigned as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 4th December
2013.

Note (v):  Mr Lam Wing Tai was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the
Company on 16th October 2013.

Note (vi):  Mr Lam Chi Keung and Mr Choi Wing Koon
were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 4th December
2013.

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended
30th June 2013 is set out below:

29 EERAEZ (BIFEEEM
%) (#m)

(@)

EENSREEAE 2B

MizE(y) : RICEE T K HiRIE 5T ER
—E-=F+ - AEHARHME
ARRBIIFRTES

MEEW) : MABEER-_Z—=F+
ATRNBEREASRRAE
VIMITES-

BiEE(v) : MZREERBKTERER
—E-=Ft+_HAMA®E
RERRNRBVEILIFHITE
=

BHE—_ZT—=9A=tHIHF
B SESMHFHHIWOT

Salary,
housing Employer's
allowances, contribution
and benefits to retirement Share-based
Fees in kind scheme  compensation Total
e FEEN RIRETE
Name of Directors e e  REWHRE EEHER e B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Chairman 1E
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil M/ & - 6,369 15 - 6,384
Executive director HITEE
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRIEEE - 825 15 - 840
Independent non-executive BIHRTEE
directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung hEIREE 123 - - - 123
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert ZREET 123 - - - 123
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace SikELE 123 - - - 123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 29 BEREMAEXZ (BIEESMM
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ ) @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s (@) EBLaKAEEAEZH
emoluments (Continued) ® (&)
Directors’ fees disclosed above include HK$407,000 EXERESHERREENTE
(2013: HK$369,000) paid to the independent non- SIEBITE F 288 1407,000
executive Directors. T (ZZFT— =4 :%F%369,000
JT) °
No Directors waived emoluments in respect of the MEEEREUNEBEE_ZT M
year ended 30th June 2014 (2013: same). FRAZTHLEFEZME (=ZF
—=%:HR) -
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) AEmE=FHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the REALEERE RS HFALTEE
highest in the Group for the year included three R (ZE—=F WMB)ES ®
Directors (2013: two) whose emoluments are ECMEFBER EXHEE - E&
reflected in the analysis presented above. The ME(ZFE—=F: =%) ALTRF
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2013: AZERMEET :

three) individuals during the year are as follows:

Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-lE —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, & ¥4 - BE2E
other allowances and MR KRBV &=
benefits in kind 3,797 2,837
Contributions to RIRET IR
retirement scheme 31 45
3,828 2,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M RRMNEE

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

20 BEERFMEXZ (BIFEEEM
%) (#m)

b) AEEmEEEF AL (#)
I EFHENE T FIEE A

Group
&
2014 2013
—EF—mE —F—=
Emolument band (in HK$) e E (B%)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 2 7B #51,000,0007T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to 7B #1,000,001 TR
HK$2,000,000 F& 2 000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to 78 %2 000,001 TR
HK$3,000,000 75 #3,000,0007T 1 -
2 3
30 OTHER INCOME 30 H g A
Group
&
2014 2013
—F-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Sponsorship income and other income & B Uk A K EH 4 I A 3,963 155
Screening income A A 621 20
4,584 175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 10th
December 2013, the Universe Films (Holdings) Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“UFH”),
entered into an agreement (the “JT Agreement”) with Mr.
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to
which UFH agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed
to purchase, the entire issued share capital in Joy
Talent Investment Limited, a then indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“JT”) for a consideration of
HK$6,277,000.

On the same date of 10th December 2013, UFH and
Universe Laser & Video Co. Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (collectively the “UPI
Vendors”) entered into an agreement (the “UPI Agreement”)
with the Purchaser pursuant to which the UPI Vendors
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase, the
entire issued share capital in Universe Property Investment
Limited, a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“UPI”) for a consideration of HK$73,862,000.

31

RE M RRNEE

H & B2 R 2 i &

BEAARABHAZTE—=F+=A
THZAM RAAR—HEEZEMN
B A ®lUniverse Films (Holdings) Limited
(TUFH 1) AR R EERMITEFMN
BAEE (BRI —HinE ([EEH
&) B UFHEREBHEREAER
EBREANFER —HBE2EWB R
RIEEREARAR ([MEE]) 22EE
BTN - KRB /B %6,277,0007T ©

R-F—=F+-"A+HRAB UFHEZX
NE-HEAERE2ENBARRT &5
FAERAR (BH [ BETHEREEN])
BENFIY S~ ([REFOERE
HED B ETOEREESCR
EHERBESTCRAEBEARAER—
REE2ENBARETYEREGR
RAN([EFYWERE ) 2282 #TR
KB RBHET3,862,0007T ©

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN RS E

31 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF 31 HEMB AR ZWE &)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The aggregate net assets of the disposed entities at the REHEBH FIHEERBCEEFEE
date of disposal were as follows: BT
2014
ZE—MEF
HK$’000
BT T
Consideration KE 80,139
Less: Net assets of JT and UPI: W EBRERBFUEREY
BEFME:
Leasehold land (Note 6) FHE T (MI5E6) 3,079
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) MIE - B AR (BIRET) 12,417
Investment properties (Note 8) "EMEE (H3E8) 27,180
Deferred income tax assets BEFSHEE 187
Other current assets HEMmeh&eE 301
Deferred income tax liabilities REMEHRAE (132)
Other current liabilities Hit e &’ (7,152)
35,880
Less: Direct expenses incurred for the disposal B HEEECEEMAY 515
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKMB AR Z W 43,744
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HEMBAREEZ
subsidiaries: RERNTHE:
Cash consideration received BEWRESRE 80,139
Less: Cash outflow for direct expenses B HEMEEEERAY 2
incurred for the disposal I © R (515)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HENBRAIZRESRAFE 79,624
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32 OTHER LOSSES - NET

RE M RRNEE

32 Hittis1R —F 8

Group
rE
2014 2013
—F—MmE —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Deposits and payables forfeited RUWET € KR IR - 10
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE MeEREH 2
plant and equipment (1) @)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets L EFIEHEFERBEEZ
held for sale 126 -
Net foreign exchange losses & 5 E518 55 (936) (211)
Others 156 93
(655) (115)
33 FINANCE INCOME 33 BN
Group
A&
2014 2013
—E-mE —=—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Bank interest income RITH BUA 324 397
Interest income from a joint venture A2 F B WA 212 =
536 397

T EFR RFERERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN E E

34 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 34 FAI5HER (@E#)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of ERFNEGHREEBRRAFE ZH5HE
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for AR BFNI AT E65% (ZF—=

the year. 16.5% ) B

The amount of income tax expense/(credit) charged/ FIEHER,/ (E#) NEra2mkasR
(credited) to the consolidated statement of comprehensive RINBR (G A) ZSEEIT

income represents:

Group

&
2014 2013
—ZE—ME —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT T

Hong Kong profits tax HEFEH

Current year RFEE 1,042 =
Deferred income tax BIEFRE R 4,813 (213)
5,855 213)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

34 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 34 FIEHRER(E#E) @

(Continued)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs AEBERBRETSHAIEEANTIE B
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the R#RE M B A 5 & T kg8 E A & i
weighted average tax rate applicable to profit or loss of the B EMEBEEE BRI ENEZEN
consolidated subsidiaries as follows: ™
2014 2013
—EF-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEE T
Loss before income tax BR PSR E 18 (18,472) (4,890)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEEHBEREAR
applicable to profits or losses in the EEEEANE X
respective countries FTERTIE (3,045) (807)
Income not subject to tax AR Z WA (8,665) (1,633)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 & A
purpose 14,715 960
Utilization of previously unrecognized 1 A Z I K fER 2 BiIAE5 18
tax losses - (839)
Tax losses not recognized RER 2 RIAFBE 2,850 2,106
Income tax expense/(credit) FriSfiE8m, (B #) 5,855 (213)
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 16.5% (2013: MEFER 2 HEAR165% (ZT—=
16.5%). F:16.5%) °
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35 FAIR VALUE LOSS IN ISSUANCE OF

UNLISTED WARRANTS

On 16th September 2013, the Company entered into
a conditional placing agreement (the “Warrant Placing
Agreement”) to issue 342,000,000 unlisted warrants (the
“Warrant(s)”) at an issue price of HK$0.0025 per Warrant.
The Warrants will entitle the holders thereof to subscribe
in cash up to an aggregate amount of HK$85.5 million
for new shares of the Company at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.25 per new shares which may fall to be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the Warrants (the “Initial Subscription
Price”), subject to adjustments, for a period of 2 years
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants.
Such agreement constituted a derivative. The condition
precedent of the Warrant Placing Agreement had been
fulfilled, and accordingly the Company issued the Warrants
on 25th October 2013, resulting in a loss of approximately
HK$81,206,000 being recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
30th June 2014. The Warrants are recognised as equity
instruments and have not been exercised as at 30th June
2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN RS E

35 BT LTHRBRELAT

ERE

RZE—=FNA+H KRAFILE
BHREHE ([RREBRERZE]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE LOSS IN ISSUANCE OF
UNLISTED WARRANTS (Continued)

An independent valuation on the Warrants issued in
accordance with the Warrant Placing Agreement was
performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, using
binomial option pricing model with level 3 inputs, including
expected volatility of the share price, the dividends
expected on the shares, the risk-free interest rate during
the life of the Warrants.

Management reviewed the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes and
reported to the Audit Committee. With regard to the
valuation report of the Warrants, management verified all
major inputs to the independent valuation report and held
discussions with the independent valuer.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of a loss of approximately HK$84,305,000
(2013: HK$377,000).

35

36
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN RS E

37 LOSS PER SHARE 37 SlREE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss EREABEERERNATESIEAE AR
attributable to the equity holders of the Company over the HEE BRAFABE EITEBARM N
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during FEHHBFE-
the year.
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=
Loss attributable to the equity ARAEZEEARLER

holders of the Company (HK$’000) (BETFIT) 24,327 4,677
Weighted average number of EBITEBERNMNELHE

ordinary shares in issue 1,715,589,398 1,711,770,370
Basic loss per share BREREE (FRBW)

(HK cent per share) 1.42 0.27
The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended EEEATEJ BREBRFEANRAAERARLIRT A
30th June 2014 are the same because the effect of the BrEEr R  TBRARBESYE .
assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares Eﬁ(lﬁt%zi_ Z—MAA=+HLEFERN
outstanding during the year was anti-dilutive (2013: same). ZEREARBEEEAER (ZF—=

MR .
38 DIVIDEND PER SHARE 38 BB E
The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final EETEBREEE_ZT—NF A
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2014 (2013: same). —tALFEZRBRE (ZE—=%F:
FHE) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

39 CASH GENERATED FROM 39 EEELEZEAE

OPERATIONS
2014 2013
—F-mE —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year FEEE (24,327) (4,677)
Adjustments for: FEIFR :
— Income tax expense/(credit) —FBHER, (E#)
(Note 34) (Pff=E34) 5,855 (213)
— Depreciation of owned assets —BEEBEZINE (M:ZE7)
(Note 7) 920 909
— Depreciation of leased assets —HEEEZIE (MFT7)
(Note 7) 12 11
— Amortisation of leasehold land —ME T 2 # 8 (ME6)
(Note 6) 34 82
— Amortisation of film rights — BRI RE 2 8
(Note 10) (MIzE10) 162,345 36,167
— Impairment losses of film rights — B 2R EEE
(Note 10) (FFEE10) 1,211 7,381
— Increase in fair value of investment — B2 N TEEM
properties (Note 8) (Pff=E8) (2,344) (4,228)
— Unrealised fair value gain on —REFEHREH
investment securities NEER S (28,004) -
— Fair value loss in issuance of —BITIELMRREE 2
unlisted warrants N EEE 81,206
— Write-off of inventories —FE M 20
— Write-off of film deposits —EEE & 2 ME - 7
- Loss on disposal of property, —HEME R NEREZ
plant and equipment (Note 32) B8 (F5E32) 1 7
— Gain on disposal of non-current —HERFELEZIERD
assets held for sale (Note 32) HE 2 W (FizE32) (126) -
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEMNB AR 2 W
(Note 31) (HMI5E31) (43,744) -
— Finance income (Note 33) — U A (M 5E33) (536) (397)
- Finance cost (Note 12(b)) —M%EMR (fE120)) - 1,090
— Provision/(write-back of provision) —TFEEE (BEzO#E)
for inventories (Note 16) (F=E16) 204 8)
— Share of loss/(profit) of —EhEE RIZER
a joint venture (Note 12(a)) (FIE) (FizE12(a)) 221 (1,087)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN RS E

39 CASH GENERATED FROM

39 EEEAZEE @

OPERATIONS (Continued)
2014 2013
—F—mE —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT IT
Changes in working capital: HBEESE
— Inventories -FE& 92 106
— Accounts receivable — AR X (708) (8,056)
— Loans receivable — R E R (38,930) -
— Deposits paid, prepayments and —BffEI&  BAZRER
other receivables H b e W sk T8 8,809 2,964
- Accounts payable — AR 30 (138)
— Other payable and accrued —H b FET 5RI8 K
charges JERT X 42,460 8,242
— Deposits received —BlkET& (101,379) 74,278
— Financial assets at fair value —BREREAFE
through profit or loss AR SR EE (32,311) =
Cash generated from operations EEEACRS 31,011 112,512
Note to the consolidated statement of cash flows: mERemERME:
2014
—E—mE
HK$’000
ERET T
a. Disposal of subsidiaries a. HEMBARAR
Net assets of subsidiaries disposed (Note 31) FrHEHBRAR 2 EEFE
(Kt7E31) 35,880
Gain on disposal & 2 e 43,744
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR ZEHIE 79,624
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

39 CASH GENERATED FROM 39 EEEAZEE @
OPERATIONS (Continued)
2014
—F—MmE
HK$’000
ERET T
b. Disposal of non-current assets held forsale b. HEHEHEZERSHEE
Non-current assets held for sales disposed I ER/ELEZ
JEMEBNEE 1,654
Gain on disposal g 2 e 126
Proceeds from disposal of non-current HERELEZ
assets held for sale EMBNE E 2 FT1S A 1,780
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT IT
c. Property, plant and equipment c. 1% #ERHRE
Net book value (Note 7) BREFE (ME7) 1 7
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - #EZ R
plant and equipment R EE
(Note 32) (MI5E32) (1) (7)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME #ER
plant and equipment JE 2 TS 5RIR - =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN RS E

39 CASH GENERATED FROM 39 EEELEZHE @
OPERATIONS (Continued)
2014 2013
—E-lE —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
d. Obligations under finance d. BEHEERE
leases
At the end of the year FR 69 4
Less: At the beginning of the year B F A 4 15
Less: Additions WBRE 87 -
Capital element of TNRMEHEZ
finance lease payments BEARIBS (22) (1
Non-cash transactions FRER S
The principal non-cash transaction represents the FEFBRERFERBEE_ZT—=F~
difference between the loan advanced to a joint venture A=+HLEFERNET-GERRIZE
during the year ended 30th June 2013 and its present REeFEANRTHMIGHNEGE2RE
value measured using prevailing market interest rate. GEAn -3
40 BANKING FACILITIES 40 RITRLE
At 30th June 2014, no banking facilities was granted by RZZE—MFERNA=1TH KTEEILE
bank to the Group (2013: same). BRTKERTROME(ZE—=4H

[) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(@)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17th April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (‘UEL”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue of
the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the “Movie”).

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the High
Court on 21st February 2003, the UEL was ordered
and had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being
part of the licence fee of the Movie received by UEL
from Miramax Films (being the licencee of the Movie)
and which was also part of the sum claimed by Star.
Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable to pay Star
interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and some of the
costs of the application leading to the making of the
Order, all of which have been settled. As the Order
has not disposed of all the claims of US$935,872
(equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star, UEL is entitled
to continue to defend the claim by Star for recovering
the remaining balance in the sum of approximately
HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799 less HK$5,495,700).

On 30th April 2002, UEL issued a Writ of Summons
against Star for the latter’'s wrongful exploitation
of certain rights in the Movie co-owned by both
parties. UEL claimed to recover all losses and
damages suffered by UEL as a result of the wrongful
exploitation.

RE M RRNEE

41 KRIRFRER

(@)

—EE_FNMA+ER -BYF
TEBBINBRAR([2E])
HARF z —REEZENB QR
EFREFRAF ([EFHRE])
REBFRITHERINEERF—
TRABEFRAA

\
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N
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) H & £4935,872% 7T (SR B
#7,299,7997T) " ER D = —WE
BIDMRIR] 2ER ([ZEF])
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BEEEREERNR T =F
At HEBZES([E
2 BEFREERSREME
18 X 178 #5,495,7007T BB 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VAN
w3

5F 355 SR AR B &

41 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video Co.
Limited (“ULV”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued a Writ of Summons against
Star for the latter’s infringement of the licensed rights
in the Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all
losses and damages suffered by ULV as a result of
the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the said
claim made against UEL will have no material financial
impact to the Group for the year ended 30th June
2014,

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. (‘KPE”) issued a Writ of Summons
against among other persons, the Company, ULV
and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors),
being three of the defendants named therein, in
respect of damages arising from alleged infringement
of the patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned
by KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

()

On 8th January 2010, KPE issued a Writ of Summons
against among other persons, the Company, ULV
and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors),
being three of the defendants named therein, in
respect of damages arising from alleged infringement
of the patents regarding Digital Video Disc owned by
KPE.

In June 2012, the action was discontinued against
the Company and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The
claim made against ULV has been agreed with KPE
and appropriate provision was recognized accordingly
in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2012.

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30th June 2014. Based on the consultation with legal
counsel, no further material outflow of economic
benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2014, no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
directors to be pending against either the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N R E

42 COMMITMENTS 42 R
(@) Operating leases commitments (@) KLEHEEFPE
As at 30th June 2014, the Group had future RZE—MOFSA=TH Kx&E
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BIET AT AH < R EHE MR ARK
cancellable operating leases as follows: Sz &EBEMFATEWOT
Group
A&
2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Land and buildings T RIEF
Not later than one year BB —F 3,472 960
Later than one year and not il —F R EiRAF
later than five years 4,912 400
8,384 1,360
(b) Other commitments (b) H bz
As at 30th June 2014, the Group had commitments R-ZE—WESA=ZTH £X&E
contracted but not provided for in these consolidated BRINERNGRE T BRREE
financial statements as follows: AT
Group
A&
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Purchase of film rights and BEEYREREZRE
production of films 52,978 45,556
Note: As at 30th June 2014, the Group had commitment g RZZE—WmFEASA=1+H XK
of HK$9,724,000 in respect of joint operations (2013: ERGEEBNEARERBE
HK$3,687,000). 9,724,000L (ZE—=5F: /B

3,687,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FUTURE OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

As at 30th June 2014, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating

RE M RRNEE

43 ARBEHERH

n=

T-MEAA=TE AEERE

NERIGH 2 K ERE MR AR R Z &

leases as follows: EHEERIBEELT
Group
K&
2014 2013
—EF-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT
Not later than one year THB—F 700 1,184
Later than one year and not BR—FERTEBRE
later than five years 119 696
819 1,880

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries

On 10th December 2013, the Universe Films
(Holdings) Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“UFH”), entered into an agreement
(the “JT Agreement”) with Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to which
UFH agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to
purchase, the entire issued share capital in Joy Talent
Investment Limited, a then indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“JT”) for a consideration
of HK$6,277,000.

44 FHEANTZX S

(@)

&M E A A
RZEBE-—=F+ZA+H xR
Al —HEE2EME 2 FUniverse
Films (Holdings) Limited ([UFH J)
EARRNBEFEHRPTEEHNAL
E(TER DT —HhihE([EE
Wl B UFHEREHE &
BEAFEREBEAQRERK—HE
BE2EMBAREREREARAR
(MMEE]) 22HMEHETRAE  RE
%75 #6,277,0007T °
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

The principal assets of JT consist of an office unit at
No. 1501, 15th Floor, Block 24, Jianwai SOHO, No.
39 Dongsanhuan Zhonglu Road Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) with a
gross floor area of 3,029 square foot in a large scale
residential/office/commercial composite development,
known as Jianwai SOHO in Beijing, the PRC.

On the same date of 10th December 2013, UFH
and Universe Laser & Video Co. Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (collectively
the “UPI Vendors”) entered into an agreement (the
“UPI Agreement”) with the Purchaser pursuant
to which the UPI Vendors agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser agreed to purchase, the entire issued
share capital in Universe Property Investment
Limited, a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“UPI”") for a consideration of
HK$73,862,000.

The principal assets of UPI consist of the following
properties:

(1) an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a
28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey
lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level
basement (with a saleable area of approximately
13,983 square foot) (the “Wyler Centre
Properties”);

(2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd Floor of a
28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey
lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level
basement (the “Wyler Centre Carpark”);

(8) an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a
28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey
lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level
basement (with a saleable area of approximately
5,087 square foot);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

(4) a detached house situated in a large-scale low-
rise residential development known as Fairview
Park. The property has a gross floor area of
about 1,297 square foot; and

(5)  aunit on the 16th Floor of a 26-storey industrial
building including 2-storey car park podium
known as Golden Dragon Industrial Centre.
The property has a saleable floor area of about
1,000 square foot.

The JT Agreement and the UPI Agreement were
approved by the independent shareholders in a
special general meeting of the Company held on
19th February 2014. The JT Agreement and the UPI
Agreement were both completed on 25th February
2014 and the gains from the disposal of the entire
issued share capital of JT and UPI of approximately
HK$43.7 million were recorded during the year ended
30th June 2014.

Prior to the UPI Agreement, the Group had been
using the Wyler Centre Properties and Wyler
Centre Carpark for warehouse, ancillary office and
carparking uses. Since the completion of the UPI
Agreement which took place on 25th February
2014, the Group has been continuing to use the
Wyler Centre Properties and Wyler Centre Carpark
for the same purposes and has through Universe
Digital Entertainment Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with UPI with a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”).
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

The aforesaid transactions were announced by the
Company in compliance with requirements of Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

By virtue of the interest of Mr Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil in the disposed subsidiaries and the Tenancy
Agreement, the transaction constituted a continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Rule
14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of key management
compensation

Key management personnel are those management
with responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group.

44 FAEANTZX 5 (#)
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REEWZED s RIBE TR
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Group
rE
2014 2013
—E—ME —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T S IT
Salaries and other short-term FehHEMEHESET
employee benefits 11,545 9,528
Employer’s contribution to RIRGTEI 2 B K
retirement scheme 57 60
11,602 9,588

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, no other material
related party transactions have been entered into by
the Group. The transactions were carried out after
negotiations between the Group and the related
parties in the ordinary course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE

(@)

As announced on 23rd June 2014, the Company
entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
appointed a placing agent to procure, on a best effort
basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for up
to 343,200,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
(“Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.1 per Placing
Share. The Placing Agreement was completed on 9th
July 2014 and an aggregated of 343,200,000 Placing
Shares have been successfully placed to not less
than six placees. The net proceeds from the issuance
of the 343,200,000 Placing Shares are approximately
HK$33.0 million.

As announced on 21st July 2014, the Company
granted 171,604,000 share options to certain
Directors and employees of the Group at a
subscription price of HK$0.1738 per share option
which were vested immediately and exercisable
for a two-year period between 21st July 2014 and
20th July 2016 (both dates inclusive). Each share
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.

46 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Globalcrest Enterprises Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as being
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

RE M RRNEE

45 HEBEER

WO —ZE—WESA=-+=HFH
D ARBE R — DB E R
(BEEEHE]) Bt ARFEZ
T—ZEREREBUIRIBEMER
ELZET DR ANBEEAEREGR
EEROBEOATZERRER
%343,200,0008% A" A &) 2 #1 & B
R(TERERD]) BEBZRERN
ZE-NEELANATENK  LEK
AL NANEERRARES &
343,200,000/ Be & A7 © R B 31T
343,200,000/% B & Bz 0 2 FT 15 5%
TE 5 58 40 575 #33,000,0007T °
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Globalcrest Enterprises Limited /<A @]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R IR

47 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

47 EHEMGERBZZ2E—NOF

ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 30TH

JUNE 2014

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new
and revised standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting
period ended 30th June 2014 and which have not been
adopted in these consolidated financial statements:

ANAZ+HIEEEEIEE R
EHAERT - AR RRE
HEERE

BENGAMBRROIERD B
GEE RS BMIA T IR MBI Z
EAEAZEFTAERE BZREE
FHEARREBERBEE T -HFEXN
A=tBi-estBEmARER ALK
N Ao b e ek P

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RUTHHSZE
FEHEERBEN

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

BE G ERIFEI25 (BFTA)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)

BE G ERIFE36 (EFTA)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BB G ERIFEI95R (EFTA)

HK(FRIC) - Int 21

T8 (BRUBRERERZES)

— R EE215R

Financial Instruments: Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

TRTR SREERSRABYHIHE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

FeRMEENKRESBRIWE

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
BRTETARTEEE PS5

Levies
BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRNEE

47 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 47 EEBERBZ_FE—NE
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS ANA=ZT+HLEERERBEE
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED EHHEET HENRRE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE MEEZE @

ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 30TH
JUNE 2014 (Continued)
Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after

RUTHHSZE
MR EE AR E N
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities 1st January 2014
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)
(Amendment)
BB E LR E105% - REER —Z-—mHE—HA—H
BB MG WE R E129% &
BB G ERIE275R
—E——FKERT) (BFIAR)
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle 1st July 2014
Project 2012
R FFENERA —E-EEFE T -_FRACFENRE —ZE-MmE+LH—H
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle 1st July 2014
Project 2013
—E-=FFENERA R HEE_F-—FRACFENRE —ZT-HWHE+HA—H
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1st July 2014
(Amendment)
ER ST ERIE195% RERNGEE - BB HK —ZE-MmE+LH—H
(ZE——FKIEFT) (BFTX)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1st January 2016
(Amendment) Depreciation and Amortisation
ERB ST ERIE165 K& AEITERBHETEZ RS —ZE—R"¥—HA—H

R ERFEI8E (BFTA)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N R E

47 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 30TH
JUNE 2014 (continued)

47 EHEMGERBZZ2E—NOF

ﬁHE-I-EIJJ:‘%'E“hHHFEEJf:'ﬁiE
E*S[I?I‘J1I%%T~¥ﬁ$ﬁﬂ&%ﬁ
HEERE

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RUTE#AHZE
R EERBER

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

Operations
RV BEREERIFI15R WEEEEKEEZ St RE
(&I )
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

BN B HE LR E145 ERELRA
HKFRS 15
BB E LS55 BEPII ALK
HKFRS 9
BB WS AR

Financial Instruments
ST A

Apart from the above, a number of improvements and
minor amendments to HKFRSs have also been issued by
the HKICPA but they are not yet effective for the accounting
year ended 30th June 2014 and have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations would be in the period of initial
application, but not yet in a position to state whether
these amendments, new standards and interpretations
would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

Universe International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

1st January 2016

—E2—R"&—H—H

1st January 2016
—ZT—R"¥—H—H

1st January 2017
—+¥—H—H

To be determined

/= ]

~E

B EXFratsh - BAEGETEIAE IREM T
— RPN BB S R 2 B R AR K

B HEREBEEZE T —WNESA=1
BlEz @5 FERRER  RIARALL
RE ISR o

AREBLEFEZFER  HEN MR
BREXARAHNRBEEKRNTE B
DAREEZSER HENLRRES
DY RSB RS G R BIRERK
BEXFE-



PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
FEREMBZEEYRE

HONG KONG T
Location Lot number Type Lease term
HEh R EE HEFH
Woodland House 1 — 5, Woodlands Villa, Lot numbers 1510 Residential 2047
121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk, remaining part, 1511,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong 1516, 1518, 1519,
1522 and 1523 in
Demarcation District 328
BB R FRIE L L 2495328 F= —EMEF
ERERA1215 #)HLER £ 15105%

PRI Bl E2 AR 1 ZE 555

2B 151157 » 15165%
15185k » 151955 - 15225%
15235k
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEUBRE

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 30th June
HE/AZ+HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-m& “E-Z=F —T--f —F——f —E-%f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
Revenue Wiz 205,211 79,106 75,881 131,256 119,096
Loss before income tax BRETEH A EE (18,472) (4,890) (17,523) (20,118) (14,359)
Income tax (expense)/credit 5% (BR) /B#& (5,855) 213 154 (702) (400)
Loss attributable to the equity holders of ~ RN AFEZHA A
the Company EEER (24,327) (4,677) (17,369) (20,820) (14,759)
Special cash dividend KRIRERE - - - 20,145 =
Proposed final dividend BRRERE - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREGRE
As at 30th June
RAA=+H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-m& “E-=F —T-ZF% —E——f ZE-%fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Total assets BEE 394,764 396,457 307,819 272,058 325,466

Total liabilities BefE (94,865) (155,304) (72,969) (32,092) (44,535)
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